Public Document Pack

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission (previously Place Scrutiny
Commission)

Agenda
Date: Thursday, 26 July 2018
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: The Library, 1st Floor - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Tom Brook, Mark Weston, Mark Wright, Nicola Bowden-Jones, Mark Bradshaw,
Fabian Breckels, Martin Fodor, Chris Jackson, Hibaq Jama, Paula O'Rourke (Chair) and Kevin Quartley
Copies to: Colin Molton (Executive Director: Growth and Regeneration (Interim)), Alex Minshull
(Sustainable City and Climate Change Manager), Kathy Derrick (Sustainability Manager), Peter Mann
(Director - Transport), Zoe Willcox (Director - Planning), Nuala Gallagher, Adam Crowther (Head of
Strategic City Transport) and Laura Pye (Head of Culture)

Issued by: Johanna Holmes - Scrutiny Advisor, Democratic Engagement
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 22342
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 18 July 2018

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission (previously Place Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 5)

2.

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.
Please note: the previous meeting minutes refer to the Place Scrutiny Commission
from July 2017.

5.

Chair's Business

To note any announcements from the Chair

6.

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Friday 20th July 2018.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received by the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your

(Pages 6 - 10)

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission (previously Place Scrutiny Commission) – Agenda

submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 25th July.

7.

Annual Business Report
(Pages 11 - 15)

8.

Strategic Transport Plans (Bristol and West of England)

Joint Local Transport Plan (WoE) and the Bristol Transport Strategy

9.

(Pages 16 - 95)

Cabinet Member for Transport and Connectivity: Q&A and
Discussion

No paper for this item

10. Trusts and Mutualisations - Laura Pye - Head of Culture
Presentation slides to follow

(Pages 96 - 98)

11. Air Quality Consultation & Engagement - Alex Minshull City
Innovation and Sustainability Service Manager
Report and Consultation Materials as Appendices

(Pages 99 - 119)

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, Brunel House St Georges Road Bristol BS1 5UY. The following
requirements apply:
•
•

The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and the ‘How to Have Your Say’ pdf for the parameters of each
individual Committee and what will happen to your submission.
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Minutes – Place Scrutiny Commission – 24th July 2017
1. Welcome and safety information
The Chair of the Commission welcomed all attendees to the meeting, and made a safety
announcement in relation to the fire/emergency evacuation procedure.
2. Apologies for absence and substitutions
Apologies for absence were received from
– Councillor Weston – Councillor Morris was in attendance as a substitute
– Cllr Negus – who had been invited to join in the discussion on Agenda Item 9
3. Declarations of interest
None.
4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Action Sheet
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record.
Action Sheet:
A verbal up-date was provided on the siting of the Megabus stop (Action 1): “Consultation is
on-going, with initial feedback being positive. To provide certainty for passengers and
operators during the busy summer season, the existing arrangement will continue and a
further update will be provided in the autumn”.
All other updates on the ongoing action sheet were noted.
5. Chairs Business
The Chair noted that it had been an interesting and busy few months since the commission
last met, with two elections and the council implementing a number of different strands of
organisational change. The Chair also highlighted the loss of senior staff within the Place
Directorate and reminded Members that this issue had previously been highlighted to the
Commission in the Directorate Risk Register (in Dec 2016) as a high level risk that could
impact on the Councils ability to deliver on projects and services.
The Chair wished to thank all those who had previously served on the Commission during
2016 – 2017.
6. Public Forum
The Commission received the following statements and petition (copies of which have been
placed in the minutebook):
Public Statements:
The Scrutiny Commission received and noted the following statements:

Page 6

PS 01 South West Transport Network with support from Living Easton Heritage and
Environment Group for the WECA: Historical Buildings and Public Transport
PS 02 Cllr Olly Mead: Cribbs Patchway New Neighbourhood (CPNN)
PS 03 Cllr Olly Mead: Council Assets Task and Finish Group
PS 04 Martin Rands: Avon Crescent on Spike Island, is within the 'redline'
of the AVTM Metrobus Project
Within the time available, all the statements were presented by individuals present at the
meeting. The following comments in relation to the submissions were made and actions
agreed:






SWTN – further to the issues raised in the statement Mr Redgewell also highlighted
concerns about the following:
o Consultation that South Gloucester Council are conducting about a N.O. 25 bus
service route which he suggested no one knows about.
o A Hotwells Better Bus Area consultation from 18th July until 28th July – the
timeframes for responses were considered to be very short
o a petition which asks First Bus for the reinstatement of the N.O. 18 bus service
during the evenings and Sundays and reinstatement of the N.O. 16 bus service
– both of which cut across the local authority boundary with South Glos and
provide services to local hospitals (Southmead and Cossham).
CPNN – it was agreed that the key points from the statement would be discussed as
part of the scoping for the CPNN Task & Finish Group. (Action: Johanna Holmes)
Council Assets Task and Finish Group – in response officers said that there is a high
demand for vacant properties that completely outweighed the availability.
Avon Crescent - After a discussion Members agreed to informally ask the Mayor if he
would reconsider the decision not to go ahead with traffic re-routing scheme (Action:
Johanna Holmes)

Public Petitions:
The Scrutiny Commission received and noted the following petition:
Petition PP 01 – Restore the Number 36 Bus Route; Petition organiser – Mrs Pearse




After consideration and discussion Members agreed to refer the petition to the
relevant Cabinet Member for comment and asked if it could also be referred to the
West of England Combined Authority for a review (Action: Johanna Holmes)
Cllr Breckels requested that he is included in further correspondence about this
matter (Action: Johanna Holmes)

7. Annual Business Report
Members considered the report and accompanying recommendations.
Members discussed the potential September date included in the report and agreed that it
was very likely that this would be used by one of Task and Finish Groups rather than for a

Page 7

Commission Meeting. If the Commission were to meet again it was likely that it would be
later in the year, possibly November.
The Chair voiced a concern that Members generally weren’t aware that they were invited to
the OSMB the following evening to discuss the priority topics for the Scrutiny Task & Finish
Groups.
MEMBERS RESOLVED:
 That Cllr Carey be elected as Vice Chair of the Place Scrutiny Commission
 To note the Place Scrutiny Commission - Terms of Reference
 That a date for another meeting would be set later in the year. The Chair suggested
that WoE Metro Mayor could be invited to do a Q&A session with the Commission
 To note the topics that were selected as priorities for Scrutiny at the OSMB workshop
on 26th June 2017
8. Cribbs Patchway New Neighbourhood: Up-date and Task & Finish Group Scoping
The report provided Members with an up-date on the progress of Cribbs Patchway New
Neighbourhood within South Gloucestershire and the proposed measures for mitigating the
impacts on Bristol’s transport network was presented to the Commission.
A discussion followed about how a Scrutiny Task & Finish Group could add value to the
process and help move things forward. Officers said that the ‘Master Plan’ hadn’t yet been
finalised and therefore the S106 agreements and legal agreements between South
Gloucestershire Council (SGC) and BCC are yet to be signed. The legal agreement is what that
confirms the proportion and timings of the S106 contribution payments.
Officers said the A4108 proposals are being developed to move as quickly as possible but they
were still in discussions with SGC as they were finding it difficult to come to an agreement
with them about Crow Lane Roundabout.
Cllr Brook (Lead Member of the Task & Finish Group) ask if it was possible for a scrutiny group
to add value to the process. Officers responded that yes they could especially if they were
involved over a period of time. It was suggested there is potential for involvement on a
number of things such as the Public Transport Strategy and Master Plan.
Cllr Mead raised concerns about the potential knock-on-effects of increased traffic levels from
the development on other nearby areas. He suggested that express / direct bus routes such
as the x73 would encourage new residents to use buses as they were much more direct, with
less stops and therefore had shorter journey times.
Officers suggested the possibility of a joint meeting between SCG and BCC councillors as
something else the group could consider. It was also suggested the group would be most
beneficial if it were a long-term group for say 2-3 years. Members agreed with this and
suggested that they’d also like to engage with the West of England Combined Authority
(WECA) on this subject if possible.

Page 8

9. Council Assets: Task & Finish Group - Scoping
This agenda item was a verbal discussion for Members to agree the scope and remit of the
proposed Council Assets Task and Finish Group.
Members began by outlining what were the main areas that a Task and Finish Group could
scrutinise. ‘Council owned buildings’ was the main focus of the discussion and included the
following, which members agreed to include in the initial scope of the work: current policies
(are they fit for purpose?) strategy, leases, disposals, community asset transfers (CATs) and
looking at how decisions are made.
The Chair said that she was aware that it’s likely that the work would initially be constrained
by staffing resources.
The Service Director for Property said that the process for making decisions about individual
properties was a slow process that takes time. Buildings are not homogenous, each one is
individual and they often end up being tugged in different directions. It was stated that lots
of people are asking for free property for various reasons but there is no budget for this. It
was agreed that it would be constructive to have a debate that led to some clarity and
guidelines.
Both Officers and Members commented on the number of recent and existing petitions
related to council buildings.
Members asked if a list of all council buildings existed. Officers responded that yes they know
exactly what buildings the council owns and leases – there are about 2,000 properties.
One Member asked if it would be possible for lists of what council properties / assets exist in
each ward to be provided to Members. Officers said yes it would be possible to do a wardbased list of assets. What level of information should be available to Cllrs could also be
something that the group could touch on (Action: Robert Orrett / John Bos to report back on
what can be provided, to who and when).
It was agreed that the presentation given to the Scrutiny Commission in February 2017 could
also be very useful if given to the Task & Finish Group members as it would help bring
everyone up to the same level of understanding and provide a foundation for further
discussions on the scope of the Task & Finish Group (Action: Jo Holmes & John Bos).
RESOLVED: That an up-dated version of the February 2017 scrutiny presentation on
Community Assets by property officers be presented to the Task & Finish Group at the end of
August / beginning of September. Members will at this session further discuss and refine the
scope of the group and agree timescales going forward.

10. Prince Street Bridge

Page 9

The Chair introduced the agenda item by saying that she was mainly interested to know if the
Council had achieved value for money on this project.
The Transport Officer presented the report including photos and diagrams of the work
undertaken. It was explained that the bridge had to be taken apart before a proper
examination of what was going on could be undertaken. The original costs were based on
what could be seen from the outside before the bridge was dismantled. Once this had
happened it was evident that there was extensive damage mainly due to flaws with the
original design of the bridge. Trapped water was discovered sat inside parts of the bridge that
weren’t previously visible. Beams were rotten, the web was damaged and there were weight
issues which had caused some of it to warp. In essence much of the bridge was re-built.
A discussion took place about the traffic issues caused by having the bridge closed to traffic
for such a long period of time and what the plans were for future use of the bridge. The
bridge is currently open to out-bound traffic. It was stated that the priority is always to help
get traffic out of the centre rather than in. Future use will be reviewed once the current work
at Temple Circus is complete next year.
The Chair reiterated her original question about whether the council received value for
money on the project. The response was that the delays, which also included receiving
permissions from Historical England did cost more than expected e.g. increased scaffolding
but it wasn’t possible to know at the start exactly how much work was going to be required.
A Member asked why the original timings were so far out and why there seemed to be long
periods when it appeared nothing was being done. The officer responded that the planks
under the road surface needed to be replaced as they were rotten. The new ones were made
lighter with a new type of plastic plank that also helped to reduce the weight on one side of
the bridge which helped re-balance the weight issues but these needed to be made especially
which also took time. Also, as stated above, the time waiting for permissions also meant that
the work was stalled at times.
Members suggested that the communication on this project whilst the work was continuing
was ‘appalling’.
Members requested a more detailed breakdown of the final £1.3M costs (Action: Adam
Crowther).
It was asked why a report went to Cabinet when the costs were still unknown. It was
explained that this was necessary to have agreement for the funding or it wouldn’t have been
possible to continue with the work and it wasn’t expected that the bridge had been so badly
designed in the first place and therefore so badly damaged internally.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.
The meeting finished at 8.40 pm

Page 10

Agenda Item 7
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
26th July 2018
Report of:

Service Director, Legal & Democratic Services

Title:

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission Annual Business Report 2018/19.

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 90 36898

Recommendations
1. To elect a Vice Chair for the 2018-19 municipal year
2. To note the Scrutiny Commission’s Terms of Reference
3. To note the topics that were selected as priorities for the Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission at the OSMB workshop on the 30th May 2018
4. To confirm the 2018-2019 meeting dates for the Scrutiny Commission

Page 11

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

1. Context and Proposal
1.1 Terms of Reference of the Commission
At its meeting on 22 May 2018 Full Council established this commission with the
following terms of reference:
GROWTH AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMISSION
Terms of Reference - Overview
The role of the commission is the overview and scrutiny of matters relating to the
Growth and Regeneration Directorate including;
Planning; Strategic City Planning, Development Management, City Design, City
Innovation and Sustainability;
City Growth, Investment and Infrastructure; Housing Delivery, Economic Development,
Programme and Project Management (including Temple Quarter, the Arena, Colston
Hall, Education Capital, Capital Infrastructure, Regeneration, Housing and Transport
Programmes / Projects, including the Avonmouth and Severnside Enterprise Area,
Housing Deal and Housing Infrastructure Fund), Culture, Property Asset Strategy,
Property Management and Property Development;
Transport; Strategic City Transport, Local and Sustainable Transport and Traffic and
Highway Maintenance including the statutory flood risk management scrutiny function.
Functions
1.
To ensure that overview and scrutiny directly responds to corporate and public
priorities, is used to drive service improvement, provides a focus for policy
development and engages members of the public, key stakeholders and partner
agencies.
2.
To action the annual work programme set by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board using the following framework:
(a) Scrutiny of corporate plans and other major plan priorities within its remit,
with particular reference to those areas where targets are not being met or
progress is slow;

Page 12

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

(b) Input to significant policy developments or service reviews;
(c) Review and scrutiny of decisions made, or other action taken in connection
with the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the
Mayor/Executive, functions which are not the responsibility of the Executive,
and functions which are the responsibility of any other bodies the Council is
authorised to scrutinise.
3.
To make reports and recommendations to Full Council, the Mayor/Executive
and/or any other body on matters within their remit and on matters which affect the
authority’s area or the inhabitants of that area and to monitor the response,
implementation and impact of recommendations.
4.
To work in collaboration with the Mayor/relevant Executive Member and receive
updates from that member on key policy developments, decisions taken or to be taken
and progress against corporate priorities.
5.
To report to the Overview and Scrutiny Board on progress against the work
programme and on any recommendations it makes.
1.2 Topics that were selected as priorities for the Commission:











Trusts and Mutualisation’s
Harbourside Regeneration and Flood Strategy
Local Plan
Climate Change
Air Quality
Strategic Transport Plans (local and WoE)
Highways Contract Management and Delivery
General Transport Issues
Housing Company
Parking

1.3 2018-2019 Meeting Dates
 Thursday 29th November 2018, 5pm
 Thursday 21st February 2019, 5pm
2. Policy

Page 13

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

N/A
3. Consultation
N/A
4. Risk Assessment
N/A
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
1. Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decisionmaker considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following
“protected characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker
must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due
regard, in particular, to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of people who do not share
it (in relation to disabled people, this includes, in particular, steps to take
account of disabled persons' disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

ii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in
particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and

Page 14

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

-

promote understanding.

6. Legal and Resource Implications
N/A
Appendices:
None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
 Full Council, 22 May 2018

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
Name of Meeting – Report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
26th July 2018
Report of: Service Director, Transport
Title: Joint Local Transport Plan and Bristol Transport Strategy update
Ward: West of England wide
Officer Presenting Report: Adam Crowther, Head of Strategic City Transport
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9036123
Recommendation
This item is to update Members on the progress of the Joint Local Transport Plan for
the West of England, and the Bristol Transport Strategy.
The significant issues in the report are:
No significant issues as this is an update of progress on the two draft policy
documents. Attached in the appendix is the draft Bristol Transport Strategy in its
format before it goes to Bristol Design for desktop publishing. In addition there is a
Powerpoint containing the points of this report for discussion in the Scrutiny meeting.

Page 16

Name of Meeting – Report

1. Summary
The Joint Local Transport Plan (JLTP) is the statutory transport policy for the West of England and
covers up to the year 2036. The Bristol Transport Strategy (BTS) provides a focus on the city and also
sets our ambitious plan up to the year 2036.
The JLTP has been informed by the Joint Transport Study, which is a technical evidence based
document that sets out our requirements to mitigate the impact of growth in the region over the next
20 years. As such the JLTP provides a wider strategic approach to transport for the sub-region. The BTS
is a more focused document that concentrates on the transport vision for Bristol, taking elements of
the JLTP that affect the city and incorporating them into an ambitious plan to transform the way we
move around Bristol.
2. Context
Joint Local Transport Plan (JLTP):
The draft JLTP has been written by officers across the West of England, including North Somerset. We
have been working with a group of external stakeholders from various sectors including transport
operators, public health, business and enterprise and key partners as an advisory group to help shape
the content of the plan and identify areas of future partnership for delivery.
Since the previous Joint Local Transport Plan, much has changed. The creation of the West of England
Combined Authority has been set up with devolved powers and funding, we have written a Joint
Spatial Plan setting out our requirements for housing and employment over the next twenty years and
we have delivered a number of schemes including MetroBus.
The draft JLTP demonstrates the challenges we face as a sub-region, such as housing and employment
growth and sets out our objectives to support economic growth, create equal access for all and create
better places to live and work. We have arranged the plan to demonstrate our ambition at various
levels of connectivity: Beyond the West of England, Within the West of England, Local and
Neighbourhood connectivity.
The major transport infrastructure schemes are integrated in the plan, along with the revenue based
engagement and promotion elements to encourage citizens to use sustainable transport modes to
help achieve our objectives. The major infrastructure schemes are ambitious and include a mass
transit scheme, which could be in the form of an underground metro (feasibility study currently in
progress to discover the form this will take), Greater Bristol Bus Network 2, Park and Ride sites around
the edges of the city, rail improvements and walking and cycling network improvements.
We have identified that there is a funding gap of £10bn to deliver the schemes within the plan and we
have proposed methods by which to generate this figure that we will test through public consultation.
This includes road user charging, such as a congestion charge, a workplace parking levy, business rate
supplements and council tax precepts.
Bristol Transport Strategy (BTS)
We have never had a policy level in between the overarching strategic JLTP and detailed mode or topic
specific transport strategies. The BTS will fill this gap to provide a policy framework for all transport
modes and topics at the city level. The draft BTS has been written by officers following extensive
internal workshops and engagement with various community groups and in partnership with the

Page 17

Name of Meeting – Report

Mayor’s Congestion Task Group. The draft BTS demonstrates the challenges we face as a city, such as
accommodating growth in housing and employment, improving reliable journey times, creating better
places, improving air quality and health and improving accessibility for all and sets out our objectives
to overcome these challenges.
The vision of the BTS is:
‘Our vision for Bristol is to be a well-connected city that enables people to move around efficiently with
increased transport options that are accessible and inclusive to all. We will deliver an improved
sustainable and resilient transport network that that supports Bristol’s vibrant independent local
centres and neighbourhoods and connects to an attractive and thriving city centre.’
Our objectives include focusing on accommodating housing and jobs, enabling equality, creating
healthy places and better places, enabling reliable journeys and supporting sustainable growth. The
actions and interventions are structured, similar to the JLTP, based on different spatial settings: city
wide movement, city centre, corridors, local centres, neighbourhoods and residential streets. The
document is concluded with a funding and implementation plan. Similar to the JLTP, we plan to gather
public opinion of various funding methods, including road user charging and workplace parking levies
to fund the ambitious plan to transform the way we move around in Bristol.
3. Policy
The PowerPoint presentation within the Appendix demonstrates where the two draft policy
documents sit in the policy context both for Bristol and the West of England. Essentially, the JLTP is
informed by the Joint Transport Study, which was produced to support the Joint Spatial Plan. The JLTP
then refers to a number of policy documents that are in the process of being written for the subregion, including a bus strategy, a walking and cycling plan and a key route network plan. The BTS then
magnifies the Bristol elements of the JLTP and expands to provide more detail, which will be worked
up into more detailed strategies under the BTS policy framework. These more detailed strategies
include a parking strategy, an asset management strategy and other area specific transport strategies,
such as Avonmouth/Severnside transport strategy.
The Bristol Local Plan will refer to the BTS as the framework for transport policy in Bristol and the
major schemes as mentioned in the JLTP will be stated and safeguarded in the Local Plan.
4. Consultation
Recent activity to date:
JLTP:
The first complete version was circulated to officers and Members at the end of April. Comments have
been analysed and amended versions have been drafted and circulated. Minor amendments are still to
be made prior to going to graphic designers throughout August.
BTS:
The BTS has been through various versions, building on feedback from internal workshops, community
engagement and contributions from the Mayor’s Congestion Task Group. The Cabinet Member for
Transport and Connectivity signed off the version attached to this paper on 16th July, which is now to
be passed to the graphic design team for desktop publishing.

Page 18

Name of Meeting – Report

Planned consultation activity:
Both the JLTP and the BTS are due to go out to public consultation on 15th October 2018. The JLTP
consultation will be hosted on travelwest.info and the BTS will be on the BCC website. Both will refer
to one another in order to capture as many views on both documents as possible.
We are producing short videos to explain the content of each plan and how people can get involved in
the consultation. For the JLTP we have commissioned a ‘budget simulator’ tool that allows citizens to
move sliding scales to demonstrate their transport priorities and whether they would implement any
of the suggested funding options in order to be able to deliver more ambitious schemes. Both
consultations will have a short online questionnaire to gather views on each document. We will also
produce materials, such as posters and leaflets for public centres to direct citizens to the consultation
websites. We are working closely with our communications officers to create a social media toolkit to
allow Members and stakeholders to develop posts and tweets containing relevant information to
encourage as many of the population to get involved in the consultation and have their say to shape
the final documents. Finally, there are stakeholder events planned to launch the two documents and
raise awareness of the public consultation.
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
5a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

Page 19

Name of Meeting – Report

5b) We have been working closely with our equalities team who has provided contacts of
organisations representing a diverse range of groups to ensure we create the plans reflect the needs
of all in our diverse city and sub-region. We will be holding a focus group at the start of the
consultation period with members from some of the groups to gain a better understanding of
transport needs for more of our citizens. In addition, we have been working with the Youth Council to
explore transport issues and the consultation methods that young people are more likely to engage in
and we will incorporate these into the consultation. EQIAs are being produced, working closely with
the equalities team to ensure the public consultations are as accessible as possible to all. Full EQIAs
will be required for the completed documents prior to final sign off after public consultation.
Appendices:
 A) Draft BTS (draft before going to Bristol Design for graphics)
 B) Slides to guide discussion
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 20

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

BRISTOL TRANSPORT
STRATEGY

Page 21

Tackling congestion and
making Bristol a better
place for all

Draft for consultation
July 2018
Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

Foreword from Mayor
Bristol is a city of hope and aspiration, with many achievements to be
proud of. We are also a city of two halves in terms of levels of deprivation.
We are investing in opportunities in our city for it to continue to thrive, and
we want to bring all of our citizens on the journey to success. We want
everyone to be able to access opportunities and key services in an
efficient and affordable way. Bristol’s Corporate Strategy has four key
themes and transport is a contributor to them all:


Page 22







Empowering and caring- we want to empower our communities to
work with us to improve transport options to increase individuals’
independence;
Fair and Inclusive- we want to ensure people have access to
learning, jobs and affordable homes and it is vital that good
transport options are available to ensure no one is left behind;
Well connected- we want to make sure our citizens are well linked
by efficient and affordable transport options to jobs, services and
each other;
Wellbeing- we want to create healthier communities where citizens
feel safe to walk or cycle and can breathe clean air.

Congestion is a major problem in Bristol that we need to tackle to get
people moving around the city to access education, employment, health
care, shopping and leisure facilities as well as visiting friends and family
across the city and beyond. That is why in 2017 I set up the Congestion
Task Group consisting of key stakeholder and influencers in the city to
work with us to identify transport issues and solutions that are mutually
supported. The Bristol Transport Strategy is a result of our partnership with
the Congestion Task Group members and I fully support the ambition,
vision and objectives of the Strategy.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Foreword from Cabinet Member for
Transport and Connectivity
In many ways, we have made huge achievements in transport in Bristol
over recent years. We were the first Cycling City in the UK, which brought
high levels of investment in cycling infrastructure and promotion and saw
cycling figures double. We now have higher levels of cycling to work than
Sheffield, Nottingham, Newcastle and Liverpool combined. We also have
rising levels of public transport use in Bristol in a time when other cities
across the UK are experiencing a decline in use. We are delivering a bus
rapid transit scheme- MetroBus- that has included improved bus
prioritisation measures to prevent MetroBus and other buses getting
caught up in general congestion to improve reliability.
We still have challenges to tackle and transport congestion is a major
contributor to these challenges. We will be developing thousands of new
homes and jobs to accommodate growth in the city, which means there
will be more people to move around on an already congested network.
Realistic and affordable transport options in some parts of the city are still
limited, resulting in poor access to jobs and opportunities. Bristol’s poor air
quality, mainly caused by pollutants from vehicle use, contributes to many
early deaths a year. Many citizens still feel that it is not safe to walk or
cycle in the city and journeys by non-motorised modes are unreliable due
to levels of congestion.
I believe that delivering the objectives of the Bristol Transport Strategy will
require continued partnership working with our citizens and stakeholders
and working with the Congestion Task Group has begun this conversation.
The Bristol Transport Strategy is the local voice for local people to achieve
our vision together for improved and better connected transport.

Version 06/04/2018

Comment [JS1]: Yet to be agreed

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Contents

Page 23
Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Executive Summary



With a rich cultural heritage, prosperous economy, and world class
universities, Bristol is consistently ranked as one of the best places to
1
live in the UK . However, as with other cities, we face rising inequality
and some of the most deprived areas in the country are located
2
here . For Bristol to be an attractive place to work, live, and visit for
everyone, it needs a transport network that supports the local economy,
enhances the urban environment, and contributes to high-quality, people
friendly places.



Page 24

The city is experiencing the biggest investment in living memory with
around £800m already being invested in transport infrastructure to
2020. This investment includes the first three routes of a MetroBus Rapid
Transport network linking the city centre to the North Fringe and South
Bristol. The MetroWest suburban rail scheme includes introducing a
number of new cross city service and better timings. Cycle Ambition Fund
programmes are helping to improve cycle infrastructure and transport
investment linked to the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone will provide
sustainable transport access to new jobs.
This document looks ahead at the challenges that Bristol faces as a city,
suggests a vision and objectives and outlines a number of aims and
actions to ensure that sustainable travel becomes increasingly more
convenient, reliable, attractive and cost effective.
Challenges
The key transport challenges facing the city are:


Housing, jobs and regeneration: Over 100,000 new homes and
3
new jobs needed across the region by 2036





Equality: Bristol has some of the most deprived areas in the
country, with a difference of 16 years in healthy life expectancy
4
between the most and least deprived areas of the city .
Health: Physical inactivity contributes to 1 in 6 deaths and around
5
300 deaths a year are due to air pollution .
Better places: We need to tackle poor quality public space by
creating high quality places and making better use of our streets
Reliable journeys: Bristol has some of the worst congestion in the
6
country, causing unreliable journeys for many people .
Sustainable growth: We need to support economic growth and
accommodate emerging technologies while cutting carbon
emissions.

The Bristol Transport Strategy
Bristol will be a city of sustainable communities that combine housing,
employment, retail, education, training and leisure functions, all linked by a
strong public transport network. In order to tackle congestion and air
pollution, our vision for Bristol is to be a well-connected city that enables
people to move around efficiently with increased transport options that are
accessible and inclusive to all. We will deliver an improved sustainable
and resilient transport network that that supports Bristol’s vibrant
independent local centres and neighbourhoods and connects to an
attractive and thriving city centre.
The use of technology to help us get around has increased rapidly and will
continue to do so. Technology is helping people make their journeys doorto-door in a seamless way through measures such as journey planning
tools, smart ticketing and mode sharing apps that allow citizens to access
various modes of transport, reducing the need to own individual cars. We
will embrace the use of technology that brings more efficient movement
around our city and this is embedded throughout this strategy.
Journeys are made for many different purposes and to various points
across the city; therefore it is not appropriate to identify just one target for

Page 2

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

7

all trips across all parts of the city . We have identified a number of
objectives, outcomes and actions that seek to overcome the challenges
we face and to meet our vision.

Outcome #1 | Efficient movement of traffic around the city, with
increased resilience of the network and minimised impacts of
congestion and air pollution.

City wide movement

Outcome #2 | On and off street parking managed efficiently to
encourage use of sustainable transport and tackle congestion, while
providing options that support the city’s 24 hour economy.

A great deal of traffic that travels through the city each day is from
surrounding areas to access employment sites in the centre of the city,
which is a big contributor to congestion throughout the city. The road
network is at capacity and will be placed under further pressure from
planned housing and economic growth. Building more roads will not solve
this issue. Apart from not having space available to do so, providing more
road space for cars will mean more cars will add to overall congestion
levels and will create more hold ups at already congested points in the
city. We need to make changes the in the way we use our street space so
that people and goods can move around the city more efficiently.

Page 25

Working with neighbouring authorities is key to achieving our vision and
tackling the regions transport challenges. Bristol City Council has been
working with South Gloucestershire, Bath and North East Somerset, and
8
North Somerset Councils on a Joint Transport Study (JTS) , which will
inform the emerging Joint Local Transport Plan that covers the West of
England region. Our approach to enable efficient movement around the
city, which has been fully evidenced through the Joint Transport Study is
as follows:





Manage the demand on the network to ease congestion.
Enable people and goods to travel into and through the city more
efficiently.
Make space and improve safety for movement by sustainable
modes.
Encourage the use of sustainable modes and embed a
sustainable transport ethos to help achieve our vision.

The outcomes we will seek to meet this approach are:

Page 3

Outcome #3 | Reduced excess lorry and van travel in the city
(especially during peak hours), working with industry to find cleaner
alternatives for the movement of goods.
Outcome #4 | Public transport to be visibly integrated, convenient
and reliable to enable people to move around the city in a more
efficient way.
Outcome #5 | Walking to be safe, pleasant, accessible and the first
choice for local journeys and combined with public transport for
longer journeys.
Outcome #6 | Cycling to be safe, simple, accessible and convenient,
either as an option for the whole journey or as part of a journey
combined with public transport.
Outcome #7 | A resilient, safe and well-maintained network to enable
continuous movement of people and goods, using smart
technologies.
Outcome #8 | More people making sustainable and healthy transport
choices by improving engagement with communities, schools and
businesses.
Outcome #9 | New developments to be innovative in their approach to
prioritise sustainable transport options and address the impact on
the existing network.

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

City Centre
In central Bristol, we will deliver the City Centre Transport Package to
make the city a more attractive destination and place to work and enjoy.
The regeneration of Temple Meads station and transport schemes
linked to the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone will support growth in this
area. Our outcome for the City Centre is:
Outcome #10 | A city centre that is accessible by active and
sustainable transport and attractive to live, work and visit, enhancing
its status as the foremost shopping and cultural centre in the South
West.
Corridors

Page 26

Bristol has a number of transport corridors that carry large numbers of
people from within the city and outside its boundaries to the city centre.
Many of these corridors are local centres and high streets and have very
limited space to expand to accommodate movements by multiple modes.
We therefore have to be more radical in our thinking about how we can
best move more people more efficiently along our corridors in mass transit
modes, which could be located underground. Our outcome for corridors is:

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Outcome #12 | Supported and enhanced local centres and high
streets, recognising that they provide key services and facilities, and
can also be transport corridors and destination points for visitors.
Outcome #13 | Reduced impact of motorised traffic on local centres
creating better public spaces that are more accessible by walking,
cycling and reliable public transport.
Neighbourhoods and residential streets
Bristol is made up of a number of neighbourhoods that each has its own
identity and is where our citizens live. It is important that citizens feel safe
and confident to walk and cycle in their neighbourhoods to access local
services and connect to other parts of the city without relying on a car. Our
outcomes for neighbourhoods and residential streets are:
Outcome #14 | Key facilities and services increasingly accessible to
all citizens without the need to rely on a car.
Outcome #15 | Safer places to live by working with citizens to design
and deliver measures to improve movement and liveability in our
neighbourhoods.
Funding and implementation

Outcome #11 | More efficient transport corridors to move the largest
number of people in the space available.
Local Centres
Local centres provide a lifeline for many residents who live nearby
providing key facilities, which means residents do not have to rely on a car
for many every day needs. They are also places for people to meet and
interact, and the influence of transport can have large impacts on creating
a sense of place. Our outcomes for local centres are:

Page 4

Local government is under increasing financial pressure with cuts in
budgets and inconsistent funding streams. We will continue to work with
developers to negotiate delivery of transport infrastructure identified in this
strategy that benefits new developments. However, delivering the
proposals set out in this document will require a step change in capital
funding in the region, along with increases in revenue funding to help
operate and maintain the new infrastructure. While new funding has been
released through the establishment of the West of England Combined
Authority, additional sources of funding will be needed, including
consideration of workplace parking levies and/or road user charging.

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

Introduction
With a rich cultural heritage, prosperous economy, and world class
universities, Bristol is consistently ranked as one of the best places to
9
live in the UK . Sustained investment has resulted in large increases in
sustainable travel across the city. Public transport use in Bristol has
witnessed a rapid increase in recent years compared to decreases in the
rest of the country, and more people now cycle to work in Bristol than in
10
Sheffield, Nottingham, Newcastle and Liverpool added together .
The city is experiencing the biggest investment in living memory with
around £800m being invested in its transport infrastructure to 2020.
This investment includes:

Page 27





The first three routes of a MetroBus Rapid Transport network
linking the city centre to the North Fringe and South Bristol.
The MetroWest suburban rail scheme includes introducing a
number of new cross city service and better timings.
Cycle Ambition Fund programmes are helping to improve cycle
infrastructure and transport investment linked to the Temple
Quarter Enterprise Zone will provide sustainable transport access
to new jobs.

We have a rising population and as such there is a need to provide around
100,000 houses and a similar number of additional jobs across the West of
England by 2036. Whilst this will be a challenge it provides us with the
opportunity to get things right at the planning stage and use development
to fund new transport infrastructure.
However, as with other cities, we face rising inequality and some of the
11
most deprived areas in the country are located here . For Bristol to be
an attractive place to work, live, and visit for everyone, we need a
transport network that supports the local economy, enhances the urban
environment, and contributes to high-quality, people friendly places. The

Page 5

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

transport network needs to provide access to jobs, while minimising
negative impacts such as congestion, poor health and air pollution, which
12
are often concentrated in the most deprived areas of the city .
Bristol’s Corporate Strategy for the city contains the following themes:





Empowering and Caring- empowering communities and
individuals to increase independence;
Fair and Inclusive- ensuring people have access to learning, jobs
and affordable homes;
Well Connected- linking people with jobs and each other;
Wellbeing- creating healthier and resilient communities.

Each of these themes can be achieved by making access to increased
13
transport options available to all our citizens . Inequality across the city
exists in part due to the lack of good quality transport options available to
connect citizens to services. This strategy sets out objectives to ensure all
citizens are able to get where they need to be to open up more
opportunities and make sure no one is left behind.
The Bristol Transport Strategy looks up to 2036 and although we can plan
for the known factors such as accommodating growth in housing and jobs,
there are a number of unknown factors that could affect how people move
around the city, such as the development of new technologies including
driverless vehicles. We strive to keep ahead of emerging technologies to
ensure the impact is to the benefit of all citizens and helps to overcome the
challenges identified in this strategy.
This document looks at the challenges that Bristol faces as a city,
proposes a vision for the future and outlines a number of objectives to
ensure that healthy and sustainable travel becomes increasingly more
convenient, reliable, attractive and cost effective. Tackling our local
transport challenges head on will help make us a happier, healthier and
economically stronger city that attracts investment and affords a rising
quality of life to all of our residents.

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Page 28

(more photos on this page including
metrobus and rail- will be the facing
page to the intro)

Page 6

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

How Bristol works




The way we look at transport in Bristol cannot stop at the boundaries of
the city. Bristol is part of the wider West of England Combined Authority
(WECA), which also contains South Gloucestershire and Bath and North
East Somerset. Data on where people travel from to get to work shows
that people travel from across the West of England to access employment
in Bristol, with 90% of people both living and working in the West of
14
England .

The city centre is also home to regionally major hospitals the Bristol
Royal Infirmary and the Bristol Children’s Hospital, generating 24 hour
movement from emergency vehicles, patients and staff.

The leisure and heritage focus of the Harbourside;
The historical and cultural focus of the Old City

(insert map to show where these areas of located and photos pointing
to the areas on the map)

Page 29
Within the city boundaries, Bristol city centre is spread across a series of
central focuses:



Page 7

The city has two major watercourses flowing through it, which brings
constraints in movement from one side of the city to the other as there are

The enterprise area and transport hub at Temple Quarter;
The shopping focus of Cabot Circus and Broadmead;

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

limited options to cross them, contributing to bottlenecks at various points
in the city centre.



Bristol has many major transport corridors that stretch from beyond the city
boundary to the city centre. There is very high demand on these corridors
and they transport thousands of people travelling from with wider area
daily. The impacts are felt at a local level, however the strategic nature of
these linking routes need a co-ordinated approach for improvements from
our West of England colleagues and are therefore part of larger transport
proposals in the emerging Joint Local Transport Plan (see Policy Context
section for more details).






City Centre- taking into account its multiple hubs, its changing
function over time and the movements passing through and
around the central area;
Corridors- taking into account their dual role as corridors linking
to the city centre carrying high volumes of movement, and local
centres and destinations in their own right.
Local centres- taking into account the importance of these areas
for local trips and as destination points from further afield;
Neighbourhoods and residential streets- taking into account the
differences in design and functions across the city.

Page 30

Bristol has a number of local centres that provide key services and
facilities but are also destination points in their own right, attracting visitors
from across the city such as Gloucester Road, Bedminster, Fishponds,
Clifton and many more.
Bristol’s neighbourhoods and residential streets are all designed differently
as a result of the different eras in which housing has been developed. This
ranges from narrow, Victorian streets where houses do not have off street
parking to wide modern streets, shared spaces and home zones.
The way our city is laid out means that day to day travel patterns are
varied and it is recognised that an approach to how we plan movement in
and the city centre has to be different from how we plan movement in and
between residential areas and local centres.
This strategy sets out our approaches in transport for the city as a whole,
taking into account the differences in functions of areas across the city. As
well as setting out outcomes and actions that apply to the complex range
of movements around the city, we will set outcomes and actions for the
following:

Page 8

Label this diagram and include the named local centres
As transport movement does not stop at the city’s boundaries, it is
important that we work closely with our colleagues in the
Combined Authority as well as neighbouring North Somerset to
manage movement across the West of England. Throughout this
strategy it will be made clear the objectives that we will manage in
Bristol and those that will be managed in partnership with others
on a wider scale.

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

Bristol: Part of a global movement for
healthy liveable cities
Leading cities are promoting sustainable and healthy transport, helping to
unlock economic growth and improve the health and wellbeing of citizens.

Page 31

London | The aim of London’s
Healthy Streets Approach is to
help create a vibrant
successful city where people
can live active, healthy lives.
Key aims include 80% of trips
to be made by foot, cycle, or
public transport by 2041, along
with the elimination of road
deaths and carbon emissions.
Key schemes include cycle
super highways, and
pedestrianisation of Oxford Street to increase footfall and help tackle air
pollution. Shortly after opening, the east-west cycle superhighway carried
1,200 people per hour – a third of the throughput of the M32 in Bristol in
15
just 3 meters of roadspace .
Manchester | Is undertaking one of the largest transport network
development programmes seen outside London over recent years, which
includes development of Metrolink, one of the best modern tram systems
in Europe. A renaissance of rail travel is well underway with major
investment taking place around the central Manchester hub in particular.
The city is also investing in bus priority schemes, and its Velocity
programme aims to transform Greater Manchester into a cycle city by
16
2025 .

Page 9

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

The GROW project in Manchester is aiming to transform the city centre,
with a new public transport system and public spaces. Oxford Road will be
transformed into a pedestrian friendly boulevard giving priority to buses,
taxis and bicycles with ‘Dutch-style’ segregated cycle lanes. General
through traffic will be prohibited between 6am and 9pm, 7 days a week.
Nottingham | Over the past decade Nottingham has built up a high quality
integrated and efficient transport system. The Nottingham Line One tram
now carries up to 10 million passengers per year, and a comprehensive
integrated bus network carries over 60 million passengers per year
(compared to around 35 million bus passenger trips a year in Bristol).
Motor traffic dominance has been reduced in the city centre and high
17
quality public spaces have been created .
Copenhagen | Over the course of more than 50 years, Copenhagen has
gradually transformed its city centre to an urban space where walking and
cycling are the most used forms of transport. Copenhagen has seen widescale pedestrianisation, the reduction in traffic lanes and prioritisation of
cycles, as well as a gradual reduction in parking spaces by 2-3% annually
and incremental increases in parking costs, all of which has helped to
change the transport culture of the city. Land made available by the
18
removal of parking spaces has been transformed into public open space .

80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Bristol
today

Copenhagen
20 years ago

Copenhagen today

Figure X: People rating congestion as “bad” in Bristol and Copenhagen

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

Policy Context
The Bristol Transport Strategy should be viewed in the wider context of
national and regional transport policy as well as how it is framed by policy
with indirect links to transport.

Page 32

The Bristol Transport Strategy fills a policy gap that exists between the
regional Joint Local Transport Plan (JLTP), which provides the transport
strategy for the West of England region (more detail on this is on the
following page), and specific mode, topic or area based strategies and
plans. At the West of England regional level, we are also producing a Joint
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) and a Joint Bus
Strategy. These documents, due to be published in 2019 set the strategy
for modes at the regional level, allowing the Bristol Transport Strategy and
its subsequent mode specific strategies to outline the Bristol specific
elements. This document provides the overall policy and strategy
framework for transport in Bristol and informs and is informed by other
Bristol led non-transport specific plans such as the Clean Air Plan and the
City Centre Framework.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

each area to include the transport requirements and to ensure alignment
with strategic policies as set out in this strategy and the JLTP, as well as
methods and timescales for delivery. This will involve detailed feasibility
studies and designs, as well as collaboration with colleagues in planning,
urban design, housing, economic development and more.

(Insert timeline to show period covered by each plan)

Under the Bristol Transport Strategy sits a number of mode, topic or area
specific strategies and plans that will go into more detail for delivery. Some
of these strategies are already published: A Safe Systems Approach to
Road Safety (2015) and the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone SUMP
(2016). The Transport Development Management Guide is due to be
published in 2018.
The Bristol Walking Strategy, the Bristol Cycling Strategy and the Bristol
Parking Strategy are the next documents to be produced. Work will begin
on these documents in early 2019.
Parts of the city will come forward at different times for development to
accommodate housing and jobs. In order to ensure sustainable transport
is embedded from the outset, we will produce detailed masterplans for

Page 10

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Joint Local
Transport Plan
(JLTP)

Joint Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure
Plan (LCWIP)

Clean Air
Plan

Page 33

Bristol Asset
Management
Strategy

Bristol
Parking
Strategy

Joint Bus
Strategy

Bristol Transport
Strategy

Bristol
Walking
Strategy

Bristol
Cycling
Strategy

Transport
Development
Management
Guide

Area specific
feasibility studies
and masterplans

City Centre
Framework

A Safe
Systems
Approach to
Road Safety

Temple Quarter
Sustainable
Urban Mobility
Plan

Other topic
or mode
specific
strategies

All major transport schemes for the West of England are covered by the
JLTP, which spans the same period as the Bristol Transport Strategy up to
19
2036. The JLTP has been informed by the Joint Transport Study , which
was completed in 2017 to set out the transport connections required for

Page 11

the West of England to accommodate growth in housing and jobs as set
out by the Joint Spatial Plan. The Bristol Transport Strategy takes the
policies and schemes within the JLTP and focuses them down to how it
impacts on Bristol, therefore using the evidence and data in the Joint
Transport Study to inform the majority of the content in this strategy. We
recognise that we have our own challenges to address through transport
and so the Bristol Transport Strategy sets out our vision for transport for
the city up to 2036 and how we plan to achieve it. As mentioned, more
detail on the exact routings, timescales and deliverability for specific
transport schemes will be produced following extensive feasibility studies
to produce area, topic and mode specific strategies. The Bristol Transport
Strategy therefore the is overarching framework that sets our direction and
ambition.
Figure X shows this more clearly.
Figure X (better graphic than shown- more pictorial, will work with Bristol
Design)

Joint Spatial Plan sets out
locations for housing and job
growth across West of England
for next 20 years

Joint Transport Study completed
in 2017 identified the transport
requirements to connect new
housing and jobs

Joint Local Transport Plan sets
out the transport vision for the
West of England for the next 20
years
The Bristol Local Plan sets out the
planning policy and safeguards
land for development as
identified in the JSP

Bristol Transport Strategy focuses
the JLTP down to city level and
sets out the transport vision for
Bristol for the next 20 years
Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Page 34

Challenges

Page 12

Version 10/05/2017

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Challenges The issues facing our city that have transport implications

Equality

Page 35

Housing, jobs and regeneration
Over 100,000 new homes and
new jobs needed across the
region by 2036.

Better places
We need to tackle poor quality
public space by creating high
quality places and making better
use of our streets to enable
better point to point movement.

Page 4

Bristol has some of the most deprived
areas in the country, with a difference
of 16 years in healthy life expectancy
between the most and least deprived
areas of the city.

Reliable journeys
Bristol’s levels of congestion are among
the worst in the country causing
unreliable journeys for many people. This
decreases the attractiveness of Bristol as
a place to live and work and causes a
drag on the local economy.

Health
Physical inactivity contributes to 1 in 6
deaths in the UK, with 83% of children and
more than a third of adults in Bristol not
meeting recommended physical activity
levels. Around 300 deaths a year in Bristol
are due to air pollution.

Sustainable growth
We need to support economic
growth and accommodate emerging
technologies while cutting carbon
emissions.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Housing, jobs and regeneration
Due to growth in population and reductions in the number of people
living in households, the Joint Spatial Plan (JSP) for the West of England
sets out plans to accommodate over 100,000 much needed new homes
and around 83,000 new jobs over the next 20 years. Around 32,000 new
homes will be delivered in Bristol, and more across a range of sites
beyond the green belt in neighbouring areas in the West of England. In
terms of jobs, around 22,000 will be in Temple Quarter in the city centre
and around 11,000 will be in the Avonmouth Severnside Enterpise Area,
which spans the north western boundary into South Gloucestershire.
Map of SDLs and Enterprise areas.

Page 36

This development will create additional pressure on transport networks in
Bristol. There are limited opportunities for significant highway capacity
improvements in Bristol. As such, the overall approach is therefore to
reduce traffic to create the right conditions to support growth in housing
and jobs by improving connections into the city by public transport and
by intercepting traffic travelling from further afield on the edges of the
city. This will enable the city’s roads to be restructured to support
sustainable and healthy travel.

60%
of people driving to work in
Bristol city centre do so from
neighbouring areas, and over

Due to the growth in housing and jobs planned in Bristol we
would need to reduce the percentage of people commuting by
car from:

35,000
Bristol residents drive to
workplaces outside of Bristol.

53%
20

today to around:

43%
in 2036, just to maintain traffic at its current level (ref JTS).

Page 5

We cannot solve our transport issues alone and continuing to work
effectively with our neighbouring authorities and the West of England
Combined Authority is crucial to solving our transport challenges. Figure
X shows that many areas with low walking, cycling, and public transport
use within the West of England, are outside Bristol’s boundary. While

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

travel patterns have become more dispersed over the last 20 years, the
predominant travel movement in the region is still to/from central Bristol
and the employment sites in the north at Filton Abbeywood and the
21
surrounding areas .
The transport implications of this challenge are:
 Increased housing and jobs means more people need to move
around.
 This will create added demand on already congested transport
network.
 Currently high levels of commuting by car to Bristol from outside
the city boundary.

Page 37
Page 6

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Equality
Transport can play a major role in tackling inequality.
Residents in areas of high levels of deprivation have fewer opportunities
to access jobs, health care, and green space. Residents in these areas
encounter worse air pollution, a disproportionate level of traffic injuries,
22
and live closer to major roads which sever their communities . Poverty
and deprivation also appear to be associated with a higher risk of excess
weight in Bristol, and providing healthy travel choices can play a large
23
role in tackling this

Page 38

People in the most deprived areas of Bristol are far less likely to own and
drive a car, and far more likely to walk or get the bus than people in the
least deprived areas. While the percentage of people cycling in the most
deprived areas is lower than for other groups, for many people cycling is
a lifeline to access jobs and services.

We must consider the needs of all when planning transport
interventions so that everyone can access wherever they need to
go in a safe and efficient way. The access requirements of disabled
citizens and visitors may be different for non-disabled citizens and
we must therefore ensure transport options are viable for all.

The transport implications of this challenge are:
 The negative effects of traffic such as poor air quality, road
collisions and community severance tend to be higher in the
most deprived areas of the city.
 Transport options are limited to some residents in most deprived
areas of Bristol, resulting in poor connections to jobs and
training.
 Access requirements are not the same for all, therefore we must
consider the needs of all our citizens to have suitable and
realistic options to get around.
Photo of wheelchair user accessing bus

IMD 2015 Bristol

Don't
own a
car

10% Most deprived
10% Least deprived

20%
4%

Method of travel to work
Walk
20%
10%

Cycle
6%
9%

Bus
14%
5%

Car
44%
56%

Public transport is vital in enabling people to find and sustain
employment. We need an inclusive transport system that caters for the
rich and poor, young and old, and people with diverse mobility needs.

Around

40% of jobseekers say that lack of

personal transport, or poor public transport, is a key
barrier preventing them from getting a job
24

Page 7

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS


Health
25

Physical inactivity directly contributes to 1 in 6 deaths in the UK and
costs £7.4bn a year when the impact on the NHS, social care, absence
26 27
from work and other factors are taken into account
.

Page 39

Air quality must also be improved with large areas of the city
experiencing levels of pollution in excess of EU and UK health based
objectives. Most of the pollution leading to breaches of these objectives
is generated by transport. Emissions from vehicle exhausts and the
generation of particulate matter from brake, tyre wear and resuspension
of particles are both significant sources of pollutants that are harmful to
28
health . Exposure to poor air quality can discourage walking and
cycling, however a study has shown that exposure to polluted air is
worse for those travelling in a car than it is for those using sustainable
29
transport .
Finally, we must improve the feeling of safety on our streets and
continue to reduce road collisions. Actual and perceived safety is still a
big barrier to cycling in particular.

The message that walking and cycling can improve health,
wellbeing and air quality needs to be more widely promoted.

Around

51% of Bristol residents report being
obese or overweight

31

Around

300 deaths (8.5% of all deaths) each

year in Bristol are attributable to air pollution
32

8 people killed and 1,200 people injured on
Bristol’s roads in 2015
33

30% of residents rate cycling safety in
Bristol as good or very good and 80%

Only

support improving cycle safety
34

Bristol has the highest proportion of people walking and cycling to work
30
of any large city . We need to build on this trend and tackle poor
pedestrian environments in some areas including parts of the city centre.
The transport implications of this challenge are:


Page 8

Walking and cycling can increase levels of physical activity and
reduce air pollution but our citizens have to feel safe on our
streets to do this.

‘I don’t cycle because I am scared.
The roads are quite busy with a lot of
cars and sometimes it is not safe.’Sacdiyo Mohammed- Barton Hill

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS


Better places

There is a need to consider the entire point to point journey for
all our citizens and visitors.

Transport has a large role to play in making the city, and the city centre
in particular, a more attractive destination and place to work and enjoy,
enhancing its status as the foremost shopping and entertainment centre
in the South West. With changes to consumer shopping habits and the
increasing influence of internet shopping, Bristol needs to ensure its city
centre is seen as an attractive place to visit and spend time in. The
movement of people and goods is often the dominant function of our
public areas and by changing how we move through an area can bring
improvements to the public realm and air quality.

Page 40

Many of our transport corridors are local centres and destinations in their
own right, and transport improvements need to support and enhance
these areas.
Around 76% of Bristol’s residents reported being satisfied with their local
35
neighbourhood as a place to live , however, many neighbourhoods are
dominated by motor traffic, and are poorly connected to each other.

College Green- before, dominated by traffic (above) and after, the
creation of improved public space (below) need up to date photo

Many neighbourhoods are multifunctional and act as local centres. By
supporting and enhancing this we can encourage the development of a
‘polycentric city’ or a city that has multiple functioning centres, where
facilities and amenities are available within a close distance to where
people live, reducing the need to travel.
It must also be recognised that not all trips will be accessing the city
centre or local centres and therefore we must enable point to point
journeys across the city to allow citizens to get where they want to be.
The transport implications of this challenge are:



Page 9

The city has many differing functions that can be made better
through transport improvements.
Each function is different and therefore improvements must
recognise these differences.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Average speed on some bus routes is currently as

Reliable journeys
Congestion is an issue in Bristol, particularly at peak times, but
increasingly throughout the day, making travel around the city slow and
unreliable for many people. This decreases the attractiveness of Bristol
as a place to live and work and wastes time, causing a drag on the local
economy and contributing to poor health and poor quality public spaces.
This is an issue for private cars, but also for buses, business and freight
traffic that get caught up in congestion.

Page 41

While building more roads may appear to solve some issues in the short
term, it can cause an increase in motor traffic across the region by
36
encouraging more car travel . Due to our historic narrow road layouts
and topographical challenges caused by hills and rivers, there is very
limited space to provide additional highway capacity. Apart from not
having space available to do so, providing more road space for cars will
mean more cars will add to overall congestion levels and will create
more hold ups at already congested points in the city. We must instead
focus on moving the most people in the space we do have and improve
the reliability of sustainable transport, freight and essential services.
Public transport use in Bristol is increasing fast and from a low base in
37
2011, with Bristol is now in the top ten cities for bus use in the UK .
However, we still need to make public transport faster and more reliable
38
as this appears as the top way to increase usage . Many citizens rely
on public transport to get them to destinations on time, or to link with
other modes of transport, such as to get to rail stations or the Airport.

low as

6mph in peak periods with 80% ‘on
time’ in 2015/16

39

It is therefore vital that timeliness of public transport is improved. The
majority of public transport use is by bus and in order to improve
reliability of buses we need to improve the resilience of our road and rail
network and reduce congestion by encouraging people out of individual
cars and on to vehicles that carry larger numbers of people. The use of
technology to give accurate journey times and to enable seamless
movement through smart ticketing and app based travel modes is
increasing and we must embrace this.
The current transport network is very vulnerable. Often when major
incidents occur on our roads or on the motorway network, vehicles are
forced to find alternative routes through the city, which cannot cope with
additional demand. This results in heavy congestion that make journey
times unreliable for most modes. Maintaining a resilient network to avoid
the economic costs of failures in the transport system is an important
focus. Our highways are the Council’s biggest asset at a total value of
£5bn, requiring over £7m per year to maintain. These pressures will be
increased due to the impacts of climate change which will increase the
frequency of extreme weather events.

Our highways are Council’s biggest asset at a total

Page 10

‘I use the bus to get to Parkway Station
and that has been frustrating at times
as sometimes it doesn’t even show up
at all. There was one where I missed
my train because of the bus.’- Fred
Wiffen- University of Bristol

value of
40

£5bn, requiring over £7m per year to
maintain

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

The transport implications of this challenge are:
 High levels of congestion means journeys made by all motorised
modes can be unreliable.
 Buses get caught up in traffic, causing buses to be late reducing
the attractiveness of public transport.
 Transport network is vulnerable and incidents can cause the city
to become severely congested.

and healthy modes of transport is one of the main ways we can reduce
transport emissions, along with the promotion of more efficient vehicles.

Diagram showing how building more roads can lead to them filling up
and buses caught in congestion.

The Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone (TQEZ) is another area of planned
employment growth, with 22,000 jobs to be provided over the lifetime of
this strategy with a focus on digital and creative industries. Major
investment has already been made in transport infrastructure to enable
movement to the TQEZ by sustainable modes from across the West of
England, providing opportunities of employment and enterprise for our
residents. With Bristol Temple Meads at the hub of the TQEZ, which
connects to major cities and towns, the West of England is opened up as
a strong economic competitor to London and the economic
powerhouses.

Sustainable growth

Page 42

Tackling all of the challenges listed so far will help support sustainable
growth, with savings for the NHS, more reliable journeys, and better
places to encourage people to come to Bristol. In addition, we also need
to continue to reduce carbon emissions, adapt to climate change, and
tackle the challenges raised by developments in technology that will
impact on the transport network.
Road traffic is one of the largest sources of carbon dioxide emissions,
41
which is contributing to climate change .

To meet our target of

zero carbon by 2050, we

must rapidly reduce carbon emissions from transport, which
currently represent

Bristol is a major freight origin and destination. Bristol Port is an
international gateway and the Avonmouth / Severnside Enterprise Area
is an important logistics hub, which benefits from proximity to the Port
and direct access to the motorway network. This area is forecast to grow
significantly, resulting in increased goods traffic in this area.

There are limited options to bypass Bristol City Centre, therefore the
TQEZ experiences high volumes of through traffic, including freight
vehicles, adding to an already heavily congested network. Freight
movement around the TQEZ is currently mixed, due to the industrial
sites in neighbouring St Philips Marsh, which generates HGV
movements, and the contrasting digital technology sector in the TQEZ,
which generates fewer HGV movements but still experiences high levels
of small deliveries in vans. The increase in light goods vehicles is
expected to rise across the whole city to service the needs of businesses
43
and households as shopping habits change .

25% of Bristol’s total
Photo of Port and Avonmouth.

42

With more people living and working in Bristol, leading to significant
increases in motor traffic, it will become progressively important and
challenging to reduce the overall carbon footprint. Promoting sustainable

Page 11

Photo of TQEZ

The transport strategy must also consider the needs of a more flexible
workforce, more able to work from home, along with how the needs of an

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
ageing population can be met. New ways of traveling are being
introduced at a rapid rate due to the rise in smart phone use and this
must be embraced to enable more efficient movement around the city.
Sharing modes of transport is no longer restricted to bus and rail, we can
now share bikes, taxis and minibuses to get around, reducing the
number of vehicles on our network.

Page 43

Connected and autonomous vehicles (CAVs) are forecast to increase in
44
around the period covered by this strategy , which could have the
potential to transform how we travel. It is too early to tell how this
transformation will unfold, but as with all new technologies, there are
likely to be both positive and negative impacts. CAVs could enable
greater efficiency in how the road network is used for instance through
shared smart taxis, which can also reduce the need for parking.
However, they could also increase the number of vehicles on the road
and increase congestion, and there would need to be an even greater
emphasis on promoting public transport. These questions are already
being considered with the ground-breaking VENTURER and FLOURISH
projects, with the ambition for the West of England to become a
European leader in the progressive roll-out of new technologies and new
forms of mobility.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS






Bristol is an economic hub with plans to expand and grow the
economy of the city, but this will mean increases in movement to
and from our enterprise areas of goods and people, increasing
the pressure on an already congested network.
The extent of emerging technologies in transport and how it can
change how we move around and can increase efficiency in
movement, however changes to how we move around in the
future is relatively unknown.
Funding for transport schemes that can deliver a step change in
how people travel to achieve sustainable growth is inconsistent.

Photo of Venturer project
Finally, local government is under increasing financial pressure with cuts
in budgets and inconsistent funding streams, particularly for active travel
measures. We will continue to work with developers to negotiate delivery
of transport infrastructure identified in this strategy that benefits new
developments. However, delivering the proposals set out in this
document will require a step change in capital funding in the region,
along with increases in revenue funding to help operate and maintain the
new infrastructure. While new funding has been released through
devolution and the establishment of the West of England Combined
Authority, additional sources of funding will be needed to deliver and
maintain the proposals in this strategy.

The transport implications of this challenge are:

Page 12

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Stakeholder engagement

‘I’ll go into town on the bus but I’ve
got friends in Downend and Horfield
and just find that the services don’t
connect well enough. I don’t find it all
that easy.’- Tracy O’Brien- St George

This strategy has been informed by engagement with a wide range of
stakeholders during consultation exercises over a number of years on
various plans. Public consultation has helped to provide an evidence
base to identify the issues people have with travel and transport in Bristol
and what they feel the priorities for investment should be.
Examples of some of the strategies and projects that have included
transport consultation are shown below (further details are available via
the links):

Page 44

A Good
Transport Plan
for Bristol

National
Highways &
Transport
Public
Satisfaction
Survey
Local Transport
Plans



Temple Quarter
Enterprise
Zone,
Sustainable
Urban Mobility
Plan

West of
England Joint
Transport
Study

Bristol
Resilience
Strategy

20mph Rollout
and evaluation
reports

Bristol
Bugbears

Bristol Cycling &
Walking
Strategies

Greater Bristol
Bus Network

Bristol Quality of
Life Survey

LSTF Attitudes
to Sustainable
Transport
Survey

The recurring transport challenges that have been raised by the public
and stakeholders are:




Page 13

Congestion
Public transport provision
Parking

Citizens and stakeholders are keen to see the following prioritised::



Investment in public transport- buses and rail for improved
reliability and punctuality
Investment in walking and cycling to be better connected and
safer

Consultations have also shown us that the public and stakeholders are
keen to see more radical transport plans for the city, telling us to be more
ambitious with our approaches.
Congestion Task Group
This strategy has been produced in collaboration with the Congestion
Task Group, which was set up in 2017 consisting of stakeholders from
across the city. The origins of this strategy have been informed by strong
evidence from transport studies as well as input from stakeholders that
use and rely on the transport network daily.
The Ongoing Conversation
Consultation on travel and transport in the city will continue throughout
the development of the Bristol Transport Strategy and beyond. We will
seek to engage with as wide a range of people as possible and look at
innovative ways in which to gather the information necessary to create a
plan that meets the needs of our citizens.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Delivering the objectives of the Bristol Transport Strategy will require
continued partnership working with our stakeholders. We will continue to
engage with citizens to ensure the strategy is the local voice for local
people in a time when we will see Bristol develop and grow as part of the
West of England region.

Page 45
Page 14

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

It’s not just the global megacities making the transition to more
sustainable and healthy transport. Cities around the UK are
transforming including Exeter, Brighton, Cardiff, and Manchester.

Page 46

The Strategy

Page 15

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Vision
Our vision for Bristol is to be a well-connected city that enables
people to move around efficiently with increased transport options
that are accessible and inclusive to all. We will deliver an improved
sustainable and resilient transport network that that supports
Bristol’s vibrant independent local centres and neighbourhoods
and connects to an attractive and thriving city centre.
To achieve this vision, and to overcome our challenges, our city needs to
continue the transition to increased use of sustainable modes of
transport, such as walking, cycling and public transport.

Page 47

We have housing and jobs growth planned for the city, which means
more people commuting every day. For the city to maintain congestion at
its current level with the planned growth (and not increase), the
percentage of people commuting by sustainable transport would need to
increase further and people commuting by car would need to reduce
45
from 53% today to around 43% in 2036 .
Our ambition is to go further, as not every trip is for commuting
purposes. We aim to reduce current levels of congestion and tackle the
transport challenges we face, by increasing sustainable transport use for
more journeys in line with leading liveable cities around the world.
As will be explored in the following sections, journeys are made for many
different purposes and to various points across the city; therefore it is not
appropriate to identify just one target for all trips across all parts of the
city. How we contribute towards our vision will require measuring a
number of factors, as outlined in the Monitoring section at the end of the
strategy. To help achieve this vision and overcome the challenges
identified, we have set out a number of objectives, which follow.
Photos of liveable cities from across Europe

Page 16

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Objectives

Outcomes and Actions

The overall objectives of the strategy respond to the challenges raised.
The objectives are:

The strategy begins by setting out outcomes and actions for the complex
range of movement across the city as a whole. The ‘How Bristol Works’
section outlined the various functions of the city by area, which follow
with outcomes and actions arranged by these functioning areas. These
are:



Provide transport improvements to accommodate increased
demand from growth in housing, jobs & regeneration on an
already congested network with complex movements from within
and outside the city boundary.
Enable equality within an inclusive transport system that
provides realistic transport options for all.



Page 48

Create healthy places, promoting active transport, improving air
quality, and implementing a safe systems approach to road
safety.










Create better places that make better use of our streets and
enable point to point journeys to be made efficiently.
Enable reliable journeys by minimising the negative impacts of
congestion and increasing network efficiency and resilience.
Support sustainable growth by enabling efficient movement of
people and goods, reducing carbon emissions and embracing
new technologies

The objectives will be achieved by a number of outcomes and actions as
detailed in the following sections of the strategy. Each outcome has the
symbol(s) of the objective(s) as shown above to demonstrate how it
contributes towards achieving the objectives. The How we will measure
success chapter at the end of this strategy identifies the indicators we
will measure and data we will collect to establish a baseline and report
on how well we are meeting these objectives.

Page 17

City Centre- taking into account its multiple focuses, its
changing function over time and the movements passing through
and around the central area;
Corridors- taking into account their dual role as corridors
linking to the city centre carrying high volumes of movement,
and local centres and destinations in their own right;
Local centres- taking into account the importance of these
areas for local trips and as destination points from further afield;
Neighbourhoods and residential streets- taking into account
the differences in design and functions across the city.

The outcomes are set out, along with actions of how we will achieve the
outcome. The actions begin with the following:




Explore- we will investigate options to implement this action.
Enable- we will work with partners to implement this action.
Deliver- we will be directly responsible for implementing this
action.

Some outcomes and actions are part of the emerging Joint Local
Transport Plan for the West of England, but have an impact on achieving
the Bristol Transport Strategy objectives. Where this is the case, it is
stated that we will work with our West of England partners on
implementation.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

City wide movement

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
and overcome our transport challenges.

Movements around the city are complex and made for many different
purposes, including from home and various other points to work, school,
health care, shopping, leisure, to visit friends and many more. The
complexity of point to point movements around the city requires a range
of approaches to enable such movement. This section sets out our
objectives and actions to provide options to enable movement around
the city in the most efficient and sustainable way.

Page 49

A great deal of traffic that travels through the city each day is from
surrounding areas to access employment sites in the centre of the city,
which is a big contributor to congestion throughout the city. The road
network is at capacity and will be placed under further pressure from
planned housing and economic growth. As identified in the challenges,
building more roads will not solve this issue. We need to make changes
the in the way we use our street space so that people and goods can
move around the city more efficiently. Prioritising road space for buses
does not necessarily slow down general traffic- in fact, buses carry more
people so more people can move in one vehicle, helping to reduce
46
congestion for all road users .
As identified in our challenges section, the health of our citizens is
directly related to transport, in particular exposure to air pollution.
Increasing separation distances between citizens and the heaviest
polluting vehicles even just by 1m can reduce the levels of pollution
exposure and reduce health impacts. The more citizens walking and
cycling in our city will improve air quality and increase levels of physcial
activity, bringing increased health benefits.
It is vital that our transport network across the city and beyond is resilient
and by enabling movement of people and goods using fewer vehicles
can reduce the vulnerability of the congested network. It is recognized
that the car has a role to play for many journeys that are currently
unrealistic by alternative modes, however our approach is to encourage
those who can make a switch to alternatives modes to do so to free up
space on the transport network to reduce congestion and make
alternative modes more efficient, encouraging more people to use them

Page 18

Our approach to enable efficient movement around the city, which has
47
been fully evidenced through the Joint Transport Study is as follows:
(In a diagram)
 Manage the demand on the network to ease congestion.
 Enable people and goods to travel into and through the city more
efficiently.
 Make space and improve safety for movement by sustainable
modes.
 Encourage the use of sustainable modes and embed a
sustainable transport ethos to help achieve our vision.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Manage demand on the network to ease
congestion:
Outcome #1 | Efficient movement of traffic around the city, with
increased resilience of the network and minimised impacts of
congestion and air pollution.

Page 50

Along with our West of England partners, Explore, Enable and
Deliver approaches to managing the demand by vehicles on the
transport network. This could include measures such as managing
parking provision or charging to drive in specific areas in order to
improve air quality or charging to park to encourage those that can use
alternative methods of transport to leave their cars at home. Funds
raised through such schemes can then be reinvested in transport
improvements. This is further detailed in the Funding section. It is vital
that this is in conjunction with our West of England colleagues to avoid
impact on competing commercial and business centres.
Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable
improvements to network management through a renewed traffic
control centre, prioritising a ‘resilient road network’ to keep transport
flowing. Work with neighbouring authorities and Highways England to
manage transport across the region, and improve roadside information
through increase use of new technologies, allowing data to be digitised
and open to the public to update.

Page 19

Resilient road network- label to explain what this is
Deliver & Enable continued use of our Code of Conduct to help
minimise the impact of all works that affect the highway, and
encourage greater compliance. Identify links between projects to
minimise the number of times the road has to be closed for maintenance
or to install new schemes.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Enable effective management of congestion associated with events, by
working with partners to ensure event management plans are in place,
encouraging initiatives such as the match day parking scheme for
Ashton Gate.
Deliver a Clean Air Zone to improve air quality across the city and
48
beyond by managing the movements of polluting vehicles (see box)

Clean Air Zones

Page 51

Air pollution levels in Bristol exceed government standards and affect health,
causing around 300 early deaths per year in the city. The government has
proposed mandatory Clean Air Zones (CAZ) for six cities (excluding Bristol) to deal
with the breaches. Bristol has been directed by central government to conduct a
feasibility study to comply with air quality standards in the shortest time possible.
The study will report in 2018.
Emissions from diesel vehicles are the dominant factor driving poor air quality.
Historic central government tax incentives for diesel, based on benefits in terms of
CO2 emissions have driven a steep rise in the proportion of diesels in the UK fleet.
Non-compliance with EURO test standards in real world driving conditions have
contributed further to significantly higher emissions of nitrogen dioxide and fine
particles than predicted.
Further work will be needed to determine the appropriate arrangements for a CAZ
in Bristol, and will be consulted on separately to the Bristol Transport Strategy. The
key decisions for Bristol in implementing a CAZ are:







DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Although there will be a separate consultation on Clean Air Zones, they
will have an important effect on inner city movements and so need
integrating into the Strategy.
Along with West of England partners, Deliver & Enable a Joint Low
and Zero Emission Vehicle Strategy, including expansion of the
charge point network and electrification of the Council’s vehicle fleet,
starting with 40 vehicles funded through the Go Ultra Low grant. Cars
still have a role to play for many journeys until realistic alternative modes
are available, therefore in order to manage the air quality impacts of car
use, we will encourage the use of cleaner fuels, including electric
vehicles.
Outcome #2 | On and off street parking managed efficiently to
encourage use of sustainable transport and tackle congestion,
while providing options that support the city’s 24 hour economy.

Deliver & Enable the production of a new Parking Strategy, (to be
completed in the near future and appended to this document), which will
need to include extensive research on how parking spaces are used in
the city and then look at:
-

Determining the geographical extent
Determining which classes of vehicles to include
The level and nature of any charges
Enforcement arrangements
The timetable for implementation
Mitigation and support for individuals and businesses affected by the
scheme

Page 20

-

Off-street and on-street parking, including the role of
privately operated car parks
Parking standards for new development (included in Local
Plan)
Parking at transport interchanges, e.g. rail stations
Park & Ride sites, and the potential to remove city centre
parking as more Park & Ride sites are built
Residents Parking Zones
Charges and income

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
-

Enforcement
Parking information systems
Disabled parking
Cycle parking
Car club and electric vehicle parking
Bus stands, loading, taxi ranks, coach parking, motorcycle
parking
Maximising the use of kerbside space
Consistent approaches across the West of England to avoid
impact on competing commercial and business centres.

Explore workplace parking levies as a means to influence the supply
and use of parking for commuters. A robust business case must be
made before progressing the implementation of any scheme. A case
study for this is included in the Funding section.

Page 52

Enable people and goods to travel into and
through the city more efficiently:
Outcome #3 | Reduced excess lorry and van travel in the city
(especially during peak hours), working with industry to find
cleaner alternatives for the movement of goods.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Deliver & Enable appropriate loading arrangements across
the city, to including loading arrangements within
neighbourhoods and residential streets. This includes ensuring
loading bays are suitably located, have appropriate access
times, and exploring new concepts such as virtual loading bays.
Enable & Explore measures to encourage the take up of low
emission and appropriately sized freight vehicles, including
micro consolidation and last mile logistics, as part of our Low
Emissions Vehicle Strategy
Enable & Explore measures to encourage shift of road freight
to more sustainable modes of transport where appropriate
including the use of rail to stations around the city and for intercity freight movements with onward connections by sustainable
modes.
Enable a reduction in the negative impacts of freight in future
developments through the use of Construction Management
Plans and Delivery Management Plans through the planning
system
Deliver enforcement of unacceptable loading, infringement or
misuse of loading bays
Explore emerging technologies to assist in reducing freight
traffic

Along with West of England partners, Deliver & Enable a new Freight
Strategy, which will be part of the emerging Joint Local Transport Plan
and will include the following actions among other measures:
Enable increased use of Freight Consolidation and microFreight Consolidation. Explore the use of sustainable transport
hubs and Park & Ride sites as delivery hubs.

Page 21

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
-

How to develop the bus network to better serve the 24 hour
economy and poorly served areas of the city
Investigating better interchanges between sustainable
modes, such as cycling and rail stations
Supporting the introduction of low emission buses
Improving information and access to Demand Responsive
and Community Transport.

Case Study: Accessing employment in Avonmouth
Fig X: Freight Consolidation

Page 53

Outcome #4 | Public transport to be visibly integrated, convenient
and reliable to enable people to move around the city in a more
efficient way.

Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable a Joint
Bus Strategy, to help achieve continuing improvements to bus services
in the region. The bus strategy will need to consider:
-

-

Page 22

Working with operators to make local buses more attractive,
improving the speed and reliability of service by: increasing
bus priority, integrated smart ticketing, and improved bus
information
Suitable sites for bus depots, particularly to the north of the
city, which is currently a significant constraint on bus growth

Avonmouth and Severnside Enterprise Area consists of 650 acres of brownfield
development land and is currently home to large scale warehousing, storage and logistics
use with an open planning consent in place over a large proportion of the area that
encourages development to come forward quickly and easily. Recently a number of large
scale distribution operations have come forward creating over 5 million sq ft of Regional
Distribution Centre floorspace. There is another 2 million sq ft of logistics floorspace in the
pipeline to come forward within the next few years, and space for another 5 million sq ft to
follow on.
Commuting by workers to Avonmouth is predominantly by car for a number of reasons.
The nature of large amounts of the business uses requires 24 hour work and therefore
workers are on shift patterns that are often out of the usual business hours. As such,
access by public transport services if often not realistic due to levels of services out of
usual business hours. There are parts of the city with high levels of unemployment
however transport links between existing and proposed jobs at Avonmouth are poor and
unsafe. Currently the only realistic access is by car, ownership of which is less likely for
those who are unemployed.
We need to investigate how we can improve links to Avonmouth from neighbouring
Lawrence Weston and from areas in East and South Bristol to better connect people with
jobs. The Servernet Flyer is a project has been running in the area and provides a
demand responsive minibus service that fills in some of the public transport gaps,
however more of this type of innovation is required to address the accessibility issues in
Avonmouth. A transport plan for the Avonmouth and Severnside Enterprise Area is an
aspiration for the near future, which will include a focus on improving public transport and
mobility as a service connections.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable
Enhanced metrobus routes, including connecting the Portway Park &
Ride site in to Severnside, new routes to Thornbury, Yate, and
Clevedon, and an orbital route on the ring road connecting the East
Fringe to key destinations on the route and other rapid transit routes to
the city centre and beyond.

Page 54

Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable
improvements to local rail services through the MetroWest project
that seeks to reopen old and open new stations and increase the
frequency of suburban rail services. This will include exploring new
stations at Constable Road, Ashton Gate, St Annes, and the stations
already planned as part of MetroWest which include Portway, Filton
North, and Henbury. It will also include investigating Park and Rail
options at new stations. We will work closely with Network Rail Great
Western Railway, Severnside Community Rail Partnership and local
groups to deliver these improvements. Improvements will also be
considered to encourage better use of and access to existing local
stations, connecting with wider transport network to ease passenger
congestion at Bristol Temple Meads.
Along with our West of England partners, Deliver strategic Park &
Rides and multi-modal transport interchanges, including new sites on
the M32, A37 Whitchurch, and A38 South, expanded sites at Portway
and Long Ashton, and relocation and expansion of the A4 Brislington site
to the Hicks Gate roundabout to enable orbital Metrobus services. With
changes to multi- modal hubs, we will consider changes in how users of
the site are charged to use the hubs, as currently parking is free and
passengers are charged on the bus.
Deliver, Enable & Explore improved integration between transport
modes through interchange, ticketing, information, improving walking
and cycling links, and explore bike hire opportunities. This includes

Page 23

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
improving connections by sustainable modes to local rail stations to
increase catchment areas of local stations.
Explore the use of technology to improve the seamless door-to-door
journeys. Mobility as a service is an emerging transport sector that
reduces the need for personally owned forms of transport by allowing
citizens to plan order and pay transport services directly from smart
phones through smart ticketing and apps. We will ensure that we allow
our data to be open to enable the development of these emerging
options.
(map to show all public transport proposals in one, inc high
frequency buses, rail, metrobus, P&R)
Explore opportunities to work with bus service operators to introduce low
emission buses.
Deliver & Enable continuing improvements in the taxi service, by
working with the taxi trade to make journeys safer, introduce an annual
taxi fare review, ensure the switch to low and zero emission vehicles and
ensure taxi ranks and bays are appropriately located.
Along with our West of England partners, Explore working with the
taxi trade across the West of England to increase technological
offering of existing taxis, such as booking and paying by app and taxi
sharing.

Make space and improve safety for movement
by sustainable modes:
Outcome #5 | Walking to be safe, pleasant, accessible and the first
choice for local journeys and combined with public transport for
longer journeys.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Deliver & Enable the Bristol Walking Strategy (to be completed in the
near future and appended to this document), including undertaking the
following actions:

Page 55

1. Deliver a strategic walking network
Identify and enhance the network of walking routes across the
city.
2. Adopt design standards for inclusive walking infrastructure
Ensure that these standards are inclusive, and integrate
accessibility within them.
3. Develop walkable communities through planning and
development
Embed daily walking into new and existing communities to
maximise health and socio-economic benefits.
4. Connect walking to public transport
Improve walking links to rail stations and bus stops
5. Count walking
Count, monitor, and share information about walking, exploring
the use of new technologies
6. Reduce obstructions to walking
Enhance enforcement measures for issues that make walking
difficult or unpleasant. These include bins on footpaths, parking
on footpaths and across access points, overhanging vegetation,
street clutter, litter and dog fouling.
7. Make walking safe
Implement measures to ensure pedestrians are safe and feel
safe. Key issues include footpath design and repairs, lighting,
safe crossings, reducing conflict with other road users, air and
noise pollution.
8. Make walking pleasant and comfortable
Consider the aspects that make environments attractive for
walking. Enable access to toilets, changing facilities, drinking
water and benches and include this information on online maps
that can be easily updated.

Page 24

9. Provide walking information
Provide comprehensive walking information and resources
including maps and Bristol Legible City wayfinding.
10. Support walking through travel planning and enabling behaviour
change
Encourage and help make walking the easy transport choice for
businesses, schools, communities and local high streets.

The Influence of Built Environment on Walking
A study was carried out by UWE in 2015 to compare how people felt when
walking through 5 different central areas of Bristol. Participants reported
higher levels of stress and fatigue when walking through retail areas with
motor-traffic (The Horsefair) than pedestrianised areas and preferred to be
in areas with green elements, such as Castle Park and College Green.
Elements relating to stress and therefore a negative walking experience
included motor traffic interrupting walking flow, noise and fumes, crowds of
people and lack of aesthetics. Elements that contribute towards a positive
walking experience included variety in building types, mixes of uses,
historical elements, nature and social activity. As a result, the
recommendations are to reduce physical barriers to walking, particularly to
reduce traffic, enhance the connection with the place by enhancing the
historical and community elements and incorporate nature in cities through
parks, vegetation and water features.
49

Deliver & Enable measures to separate pedestrians and bikes
wherever possible and fix problem areas, as set out in our shared space
policy (link)
Deliver & Enable new developments that are permeable and
accessible to all users and secure funding for off-site improvements
through the development management process.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Outcome #6 | Cycling to be safe, simple, accessible and
convenient, either as an option for the whole journey or as part of a
journey combined with public transport.

Deliver & Enable the Bristol Cycle Strategy (to be completed in the
near future and appended to this document), including:
-

Page 56

Connect the city for cycling
Build a comprehensive cycle network accessible for all
Adopt a simple and intuitive approach to cycle maps and signs
and regularly audit
Ensure quality facilities are in place at the beginning and end of
journeys, including secure cycle parking to match the growth of
cycling in the city
Fully integrate cycling into the wider transport network

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
-

Make cycling simpler and safer
Adopt a simple and intuitive approach to cycle maps and signs
and regularly audit
Reduce and enforce motor traffic speeds to create a safer
environment
Regularly maintain the cycle network, especially in winter
months, ensuring safe cycling surfaces and well lit corridors
Make cycle training available to all citizens

‘I think if all drivers had to have a go at cycling then they would learn a
whole lot about what goes on and why people do things the way they do
and you know give people a wide berth.’- Resident in Shirehampton
-

Make cycling inclusive and accessible
Enable and encourage a new wave of people to cycling through
use of loan bikes including e-bikes
Extensive promotion of cycling, including people at a point of
transition e.g. new job, new school year, new university students
Use innovative technology to help encourage new people to
cycle and support those who cycle regularly
Continue to research the different needs and motivations that
may affect levels of cycling and seek ways to enable cycling for
all
Continue to work closely with organisations that encourage
cycling
Recognise and support leisure and recreational cycling as a way
to inspire more people to cycle and promote Bristol as a lively
and attractive city

Enable & Explore ways to enhance cycle hire schemes. Bristol has
been approached by a number of companies offering dockless cycle hire
schemes and we will work with them to provide services that benefit the
city.

Page 25

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Deliver & Enable new developments that are accessible by safe and
attractive cycling infrastructure and seek contributions towards off-site
improvements to better connect the development as part of the
development management process.

‘It is safe to cycle because I cycle on the
track. I can take the track from here and
go to Fishponds. I can take it from here
and go to Bath. I can take the family to
go anywhere I want to go and town. It
keeps us safe on the track.’- Gary
Sangston- Barton Hill

Page 57

Case study- Family Cycling Centre
The Family Cycling Centre in Hengrove was set up using Central Government
funding in 2016 and is run in partnership with British Cycling. The Centre is a
traffic-free site that provides entry level cycling to a new generation of cyclists
– starting with balance bikes of different sizes, through to 2 , 3 and 4
wheelers, companion bikes, wheel chair bikes and hand-cycles, making
cycling accessible to all.
The Centre is fully accessible in terms of the Equalities Act 2010 and has a
Changing Places Toilet facility with Changing table and Hoist. Our Special
needs schools come to ride at the Centre for their Bikeability training. Other
disabled individuals come to experience the benefits of cycling.
The Centre also provides Bikeability training out of schools to allow all new
cyclists to learn and develop confidence on bikes and there is also sports
coaching for cycling.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Outcome #7 | A resilient, safe and well-maintained network to
enable continuous movement of people and goods, using smart
technologies.

Deliver & Enable a new Transport Asset Plan linked to a Maintenance
Manual, setting out 2-3 year programme of maintenance and prioritising
spending. Use maintenance works to implement change and also
identify where transport projects can contribute to maintenance.
Explore opportunities to use emerging technologies to monitor our
transport assets and to help priorotise and co-ordinate works on our
network.
Explore opportunities for mutually beneficial flood risk management,
environmental and transport schemes, including implementing flood
schemes that improve the urban realm and deliver walking and cycling
infrastructure.
Deliver key transport routes that are sequentially located to avoid high
flood risk areas and ensure flood risk and subsequent diversionary
routes are duly considered from the outset of a project.
Deliver & Enable others to build in co-benefits to transport projects
such as Sustainable Drainage Systems by producing and promoting a
design guide. In line with the existing West of England Sustainable

Drainage Developers Guides.
Deliver & Enable reductions in road noise by treating noise hotspots
on the road network.

The Centre’s success continues to grow, with 12, 355 people attending
sessions at the Centre in 2017-18.
Photo of Family Cycle Centre

Page 26

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Deliver & Enable a Safe Systems Approach to Road Safety in Bristol,
(appended to this document) by reducing traffic volumes and speeds and
making changes to the highway to reduce road danger.

Page 58

A culture change is needed in order to achieve objectives of eradicating
deaths and life changing injuries on the road. The term Safe System now
represents the current consensus of what constitutes best practice
strategic thinking in road safety and is recognised as such by
international organisations including the World Health Organisation, the
OECD, and World Bank. A Safe Systems approach to road safety is
based on the principle that life and health should not be compromised to
meet the demands of mobility. Safe Systems Road Safety requires a
50
truly inter-disciplinary approach including that of public health . Bristol
should be a city where it is safe for a 10 year old child to walk
independently to school. The aims of the Safe Systems Approach to
Road Safety run throughout the Bristol Transport Strategy, and include:






Safer Speeds – establishing and enforcing appropriate speed
limits to create a road network that protects vulnerable road
users and separates fast moving traffic where appropriate
Safer Roads – improving road layouts to improve our network
Safer vehicles – working with partners to improve the safety of
the vehicle fleet
Safer Road Use – education, training, and enforcement to
influence road user behaviour

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Case study- Safe Systems Approach in Bristol
In 2015 the City Council published its Safe Systems Road Safety Plan.
This demonstrated that poorer communities are at disproportionate risk
of injury, most especially children, being up to six times more likely than
children from the wealthiest communities. Efforts therefore need to be
focused especially on reducing injuries within poorer communities. Lower
traffic speeds are a key given the steep increase in risk of death as
speed increases above 20mph. Targeted traffic-law enforcement
effectively reduces the frequency of fatal motor-vehicle crashes and so
working with the Police and other services, but also with communities,
will be important in delivering multi-faceted interventions to reduce both
the risk of road traffic injury and the fear which itself acts a deterrent to
healthier and inherently safer modes of travel. A Safe Systems principle
must be applied to all transport interventions; however we are carrying
out specific road safety activities that include:













Page 27

Speed management (setting of speed limits, designing for those
speed limits, enforcement and education) – particularly 20 mph
Community speed watch
Safety cameras – speed & red light
Specific campaigns, behaviour change activity – e.g. mobile
phone use, drink driving, drug driving etc
Driver training / education (including fleet training for 20mph)
Road safety training – e.g. pedestrian skills for
schoolchildren, cycle training – adult & schools
School Crossing Patrols
Safer routes to School
Specific engineering schemes – casualty reduction
Improving quality of scheme design and fully embedding safety
into all schemes,
Segregated cycle ways at high conflict / busy locations
Filtered permeability, where routes are made circuitous for motor
traffic but direct for pedestrians and cyclists

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

Encourage the use of sustainable modes and
embed a sustainable transport ethos to help
achieve our vision:
Outcome #8 | More people making sustainable and healthy
transport choices by improving engagement with communities,
schools and businesses.

Along with our West of England colleagues, Deliver transport
information via TravelWest and other portals. Use social media
platforms to improve the user experience and make it easier to access

Page 59

high quality transport information through the development of digital
services and personalised information.
Deliver & Enable developers, schools and businesses to produce and
implement travel plans to encourage the use of sustainable and healthy
transport.
Explore working with businesses to encourage flexible working
patterns that reduce the need for employees to travel to work, such as
flexible hours and working from home.
Deliver & Enable information and engagement to raise awareness of
new infrastructure projects. Engaging with communities from the start
on transport projects and setting out how our projects fit in to the overall
strategy for the city.
Along with West of England partners, Enable increased use of car
sharing and Mobility as a Service options, including promoting car
sharing and car clubs. Continue to deliver, enable and explore the use of

Page 28

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
new technologies that promote home working and reduce the need to
travel.
Enable innovation and research, improving the openness and quality
of our transport data, and linking better with our local universities.
Outcome #9 | New developments to be innovative in their approach
to prioritise sustainable transport options and address the impact
on the existing network.

Deliver & Enable a new Transport Development Management Guide
to assist developers through the process of delivering safe and
accessible development in the interests of the future health of the new
and existing population.
Deliver requirements for the submission of robust assessments to
ensure we are correctly determining planning proposals in the interests
of providing a credible evidence base upon which to input to the land use
planning process
Deliver requirements for new development to maximise the use of
sustainable travel by locating within convenient access to high quality
public transport, walking and cycling opportunities in turn enabling
optimum density development.
Deliver requirements to integrate land use planning and transport
through effective masterplanning and uphold our obligation as
Highway Authority to technically scrutinise and supervise the
construction of new streets and improvements to existing streets
undertaken as part of development proposals in the interests of
permeability and delivering safe and direct routes and facilities for
pedestrians, cyclists, and public transport users. This includes removing

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

physical barriers for cyclists and ensuring footways are wide enough for
wheelchairs and buggies to pass each other.

the car, as well as deliver appropriate levels of Electric Charge points
and disabled parking.

Deliver requirements for funding of new transportation infrastructure
to ensure that harmful impacts of development are minimised through
the delivery of sustainable travel infrastructure and the effective
incentivisation of active travel through the travel planning process.
Secure investment from developers towards infrastructure either
delivered by the council through S106 or by the developer through S278
agreements.

Deliver requirement to incorporate appropriate SuDS techniques into
new developments based on ground investigations.
We will work with developers to ensure planning proposals meet
the above criteria and actively encourage mode shift away from the
private motor car.

Deliver requirement for oversight of the construction of new streets
and transport improvements by developers in the interests of avoiding
safety risks and maintenance liabilities during and after construction.

Page 60

Deliver requirements for appropriate parking standards by
rationalising parking requirements for new development, with different
levels depending on the accessibility of areas by alternative modes to

Page 29

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

City Centre

Although overall the centre is prosperous, there are large parts which
suffer from high levels of deprivation, especially to the east.

The How Bristol Works section highlighted that Bristol City Centre is a
series of multiple centres, each with differing functions, which include the
following areas:

The majority of people who live in the city centre do not travel to work by
car, but congestion impacts everyone, causing delays and unreliable bus
services, and worsening conditions for walking and cycling. Many bus
routes across the city travel through the centre, with delays causing knock
on effects across the city.






The enterprise area and transport hub at Temple Quarter;
The shopping focus of Cabot Circus and Broadmead;
The leisure and heritage focus of the Harbourside;
The historical and cultural focus of the Old City

(map showing these areas with photos of each)

Page 61

Bristol city centre is undergoing a transformation brought about by
changes in how we shop and work and investment in public transport and
public realm. There is growing demand for residential and student
accommodation in the in the city centre that needs to be balanced
alongside other uses. The development of Temple Quarter, with around
22,000 jobs is also shifting the centre of gravity of the city centre to the
south-east. Although the city centre continues to be successful, there is a
need to proactively plan for these changes and create places that can
accommodate and provide for all the different needs of people living,
working, and visiting the city. The city centre is a focus for economic
regeneration, and as such changes faster than many other parts of Bristol.
Bristol is viewed as one of the UK’s most liveable cities. People are
attracted to live in the centre due to the excellent employment
opportunities, education establishments, accessibility and the amenities on
offer – shopping, parks and open spaces, culture and events. The
population of the centre doubled to around 30,500 between 2001 and
2014, with the largest increase in the 18-24 age group. However, a lack of
housing supply and affordability is becoming an ever increasing issue.

Page 30

The success of the city centre is generating large volumes of travel
demand, that are set to increase in future, causing congestion problems
during the peak periods and increasingly throughout the day. The majority
of congestion in the city centre in the morning peak is caused by
commuting trips. The evening peak is caused by a mix of commuting and
leisure trips.
Sustainable modes of transport such as walking, cycling, bus, and trains
already play a vital role in the success of the city centre, and their role is
set to increase in future with intensified urban living and improved public
transport connections.
The city centre is also home to one of the region’s major hospitals, the
Bristol Royal Infirmary, as well as the Bristol Children’s Hospital.
Movement to and from the hospitals needs careful consideration, not only
for emergency vehicles but also for patients for whom travel by walking or
cycling may not be possible. The Joint Bus Strategy as referred to in the
Citywide movement section will explore opportunities to improve the
network to enable better access to hospitals by bus. We must keep the
network flowing to enable access for emergency vehicles and for patients
who have no realistic alternative to the car by encouraging the use of
sustainable transport to those who can use it.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Transport needs to respond to these changes and the way we plan
transport for the city centre must take into consideration the impact of
transport and movement on place making. The draft City Centre
Framework due to be published at the end of 2018 sets out the design and
high level movement principles for the city centre to help shape future
development. It is important that future area-specific plans such as the City
Centre Framework covers multiple disciplines including transport,
movement, urban design and planning to ensure there is a holistic
approach to place making.
Making better places where people want to spend time means increasing
access by sustainable transport modes and reducing the negative impact
of motor traffic, such as noise and pollution, which costs and estimated
51
£83m per year (2013 prices) .

Page 62

As mentioned in the City wide movement section, our approach to
reducing unnecessary traffic travelling to the city centre to improve
connections to the city by sustainable transport and to intercept traffic
travelling from further afield on the edges of the city and then switching to
an alternative mode of transport. This can enable spaces in the city centre
to be re-purposed for people to spend time, which enhances the city’s
economy. This has previously been achieved in Queen Square and
College Green.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Deliver & Enable a City Centre Transport Package, as set out in the City
Centre Framework (2018) that sets out the following aims for movement
in the city centre:
1. New and expanded pedestrian priority areas
2. Complete a network of high quality public realm corridors
3. Complete the All Ages and Abilities (AAA) cycle network in the city
centre
4. Complete the city centre bus lane network
5. Enable the transformation of Broadmead
6. New and expanded Park & Ride services
7. Improvements to interchange, coach parking, taxi ranks, and ferry
services
8. Smarter motor traffic management
9. Parking strategy
10. Simplify the highway network

Outcome #10 | A city centre that is accessible by active and
sustainable transport and attractive to live, work and visit, enhancing
its status as the foremost shopping and cultural centre in the South
West.

Page 31

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Corridors
Bristol has many major transport corridors that stretch from beyond the city
boundary to the city centre. There is very high demand on these corridors
and they transport thousands of people travelling from with wider area
daily. The A38 North, comprising Stokes Croft, Cheltenham Road, and
Gloucester Road best highlights some of the key issues facing our
transport corridors across the city.

Page 63

As many of our transport corridors are, the A38 North is a major attraction
and destination in itself, with a large number of independent traders, cafes,
bars and restaurants. However, it is also a key route into the city carrying
52
at least 40,000 people per day between 7am and 7pm . It is the most
popular cycle route in the city, with 3,500 bikes a day on the busiest
sections.

Enable the regeneration of Temple Meads station and additional
transport schemes linked to Temple Quarter, improving connectivity to
and through this expanding area.

The graphs below show that although private cars account for the highest
number of vehicles on the corridor, the majority of people travel by
sustainable modes, which is similar on many of our corridors.
Vehicles

People*

Photo of Temple Meads

*figures calculated using actual bus occupancy data and Bristol average Car, LGV, and HGV figures

Page 32

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
The main challenges for the A38 North, but are replicable in many
transport corridors include:




Page 64



Reliable transport: average inbound speeds in the morning peak
53
are 9 mph for motor traffic, and just 6 mph for buses (although
average cycling speed is 9mph). While there are some bus lanes
on the route, these are not continuous and buses are still delayed
in congestion. The large numbers of people boarding buses also
contributes to these low bus speeds.
Improved safety, health, and security: during the last three years
there were approximately 135 reported road collisions, with 43%
causing injury to cyclists and 27% injury to pedestrians. The
54
majority of collisions involved vehicles turning to/from side roads .
The corridor also suffers from air pollution and is within the Bristol
Air Quality Management Area.
Better places: the corridor is dominated by motor traffic and there
is a need to enhance the public realm and support local retailers.

Finding solutions to these issues is not easy, particularly given a lack of
road-space which, on the A38 North narrows to just 13 metres between
buildings at its narrowest. Bus priority has already been implemented
where possible along most of the route and there is limited room for further
public transport priority without extremely radical measures. Local rail
infrastructure has limited coverage to serve as alternatives to the corridors.
The Joint Transport Study (link) explored potential options to enable
movement along corridors more efficiently. These included gating corridors
to general traffic to prioritise traffic for access to local areas only, with
through traffic guided to use alternative routes, however this is likely to
result in local and unsuitable streets being used as alternative routes.
Other options explored included on-street trams, however, without a
significant reduction in traffic, trams would likely be stuck in congestion.
Construction of a tram would also mean several years of disruption and

Page 33

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
road closures. As such, we have to look at more radical ways to use our
corridors to move more people more efficiently.
The impacts of movements on our transport corridors are felt at a local
level, however the strategic nature of these linking routes need a coordinated approach for improvements from our West of England
colleagues and are therefore part of larger transport proposals in the
emerging Joint Local Transport Plan.
Outcome #11 | More efficient transport corridors to move the largest
number of people in the space available.
c

Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable the
proposals outlined in the Joint Transport Study that benefit
movement on Bristol’s corridors. The Joint Transport Study has
informed the emerging Joint Local Transport Plan, which sets out the
detail of how these schemes have been scored for prioritisation along with
all other major transport schemes across the West of England. The
following schemes all scored highly and are of high priority for delivery but
given the scale of each project delivery will be in the medium to longer
terms of this strategy. We will carry out feasibility studies where necessary
to identify the most efficient option for each route. The routes identified in
the Joint Transport Study and the proposals that we will investigate are:



City Centre to North Fringe: Due to the lack of highway space
and other constraints on much of this route, we will explore
underground options for large sections of the route. The exact
route alignment is to be decided, but could follow the A38 North

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

until departing to serve Southmead Hospital, Cribbs Causeway,
Aztec West, and a new Park & Ride linking to M5 Junction 16.







City Centre to East Fringe: underground options to be
considered. The exact route alignment is to be decided, but could
follow the A420 and A4174 ring road, serving destinations along
the route including Emersons Green and new Park & Rides on
the A420 and a new M4 Junction 18a.
City Centre to Keynsham/Bath: The construction of the
Callington Road Link will help to divert through traffic away from
the city centre and unlock roadspace on the A4 Bath Road that
can be re-allocated to create a rapid transit link. The intention is
that this will initially be a MetroBus based service linking Bristol,
Keynsham, Saltford, and Bath.

Page 65

City Centre to Airport: There are various options available for
this route, including tram and underground options. An
underground option could divert to serve south Bristol, linking to a
new Park & Ride on the A38, before emerging overground along
the A38 to the Airport.

Besides the four corridors identified for improvements in mass transit,
other options identified in the Joint Transport Study that have scored
highly for prioritisation in the Joint Local Transport Plan for improving
movement along corridors to be explored are:





Page 34

Enhanced metrobus routes, including connecting the Portway
Park & Ride site in to Severnside, new routes to Thornbury, Yate,
and Clevedon, and an orbital route on the ring road connecting the
East Fringe to key destinations on the route and other rapid transit
routes to the city centre and beyond.

south-east Bristol and remove unsuitable through traffic from the
city centre.




Cycle superhighways to provide direct, continuous and safe
cycle routes on key corridors, as part of wider ambitions to deliver
200 miles of all ages and abilities cycle network.
Local bus improvements including increased bus priority and
extended bus lanes as part of a Great Bristol Bus Network 2
project.

Enable improvements in the bus service, including reducing boarding
times through integrated smart ticketing and prioritising movement of
buses through use of the urban traffic control centre and traffic signal
improvements. These measures will be covered by delivering a Joint Bus
Strategy (see City wide movement section)
Deliver a review of the road network to ensure key routes are
appropriately classified and have appropriate waiting and loading
restrictions.
Explore, deliver, and enable changes in parking provision, including
removal and/or relocation of on-street parking in the city centre and on key
corridors to provide space for other uses and improve journey time
reliability. Explore the potential for new off-street public car parks at local
centres to replace lost spaces on corridors.
Explore, deliver, and enable use of technology to improve corridor
efficiency, including improving links to corridors where bus services are
frequent. This could be through Mobility as a Service options such as bike
hire or shared taxi to connect the first or last mile from corridors with
frequent services.

Road improvements, mentioned above which include the
Callington Road Link and A4-A37 link, which will enable mass
transit routes, and also improve the flow of traffic throughout

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

Case Study: Exploring underground metro options
.

Given the restraints on many of our corridors, in many cases, the only deliverable
alternative is to go underground. Along with our West of England colleagues, we
are exploring lightweight underground systems, such as the Automatic Light
Vehicle system in operation in Rennes, Turin, Toulouse, Lille, Taipei and other
cities outside the UK. The system is the latest generation of Light Automatic
Vehicle and is marketed as the backbone of the transport system in medium sized
cities such as Bristol. The advantages of this system are:




Page 66




Automated operation with no drivers reduces costs and allows for more
frequent trains with very short headways. Trains can be as often as every
60 seconds. This reduces crowding at stations.
Short trains reduce costs as smaller tunnels and small stations can be
used. This would allow the use of modern cheaper tunnelling techniques
and prefabricated stations.
The rubber wheels allow for tighter curves, and steeper gradients than
conventional metro systems, which is well suited to Bristol’s topography.
Sections of track can be elevated or run at grade to reduce costs, although
the system needs to be 100% segregated because there are no drivers.

A light automated metro could be transformational for the region, cutting peak
journey times from Aztec West, Emerson’s Green, and the Airport to the City
Centre to under 25 minutes, with increased capacity and reliability with services
every couple of minutes. An underground system would enable the removal of
some above ground infrastructure, and streets could be redesigned to improve the
public realm. While an underground system is technically deliverable, the costs are
significant, at around £3-4bn needed for three lines.
The planning horizon for underground schemes is also long, with most schemes
taking around 20 years to deliver. A key part of ongoing feasibility work will be
exploring how future trends could impact on the feasibility of such a system. Initial
feasibility work is currently underway to explore underground options in more
detail, exploring construction and operation costs, ground conditions, patronage
forecasts, future trends, and other considerations.

Page 35

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Local Centres
Many of Bristol’s local centres and high streets are located along key
transport corridors into the city centre. The A420 Church Road is a local
centre for residents living in Redfield, St George, Lawrence Hill, Barton Hill
and Easton. The A432 Fishpond Road and Stapleton Road serves the
neighbourhoods of Fishponds, Hillfields, Greenbank and Easton.
Gloucester Road, Cheltenham Road and Stokes Croft together are located
on the A38 one of the major transport corridors into the city. This stretch of
road has the largest number of independent shops in the UK (Visit Bristol,
2018) and therefore provides a key local centre for residents living in
Horfield, Bishopston, Redland, St Andrews, Montpelier, Cotham and St
Pauls, but is also an attractive destination point for many travelling from
across the city and wider region.
Given their positions on a main transport corridor into the city, many bus
services travel through these local centres, with buses every couple of
minutes. The Showcase Bus Route project improved access for buses by
creating bus lanes that operate at peak times of the day. This meant that
on street parking had to be limited to off peak hours only.
55

Sustrans carried out a study in 2006 in light of the Showcase Bus Route
project to find out whether removing parking would affect the economy and
viability of businesses along corridors in Bristol, as some business owners
originally raised concerns about this. The study found that business
owners overestimated the amount of trade they thought arrived by car and
underestimated the number of people who arrived on foot, bike and bus.
Bus priority measures can facilitate better parking, delivery and drop off
arrangements for local shops to enhance the local centre, while
56
functioning as key transport corridors .

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

Page 67

Many other local centres are located across the city, although not all are
on main transport corridors. Local centres in Shirehampton, Westbury on
Trym, Southmead, Easton, Bedminster and Hartcliffe provide essential
services and facilities for many residents who live nearby, which means
residents do not have to rely on a car for many every day needs.
Local centres also provide places for people to meet and interact, and the
influence of transport can have large impacts on creating a sense of place.
As referred to in the City Centre section, it is important that we reduce the
negative impacts of traffic in order to encourage more people to spend
time in their local areas, not only as a functional space for shopping and
services, but to increase social interaction, build communities and increase
residents’ wellbeing.

Page 36

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Better map required
By increasing options of access by sustainable modes of transport and
reducing the amount traffic passing through local centres to reach other
destinations, local centres can begin or continue to thrive as focal points of
the community and provide a function to ensure all citizens have equal
access to services and are not reliant on a car for every day needs.
Outcome #12 | Supported and enhanced local centres and high
streets, recognising that they provide key services and facilities, and
can also be transport corridors and destination points for visitors.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Outcome #13 | Reduced impact of motorised traffic on local centres
creating better public spaces that are more accessible by walking,
cycling and reliable public transport.

Deliver & Enable continuing improvements for pedestrians, to make
walking the first choice for local journeys, as outlined in the Bristol
Walking Strategy action plan (see City wide movement section)
Deliver & Enable continuing improvements to access local centres by bike,
through the provision of safe routes and secure cycle storage, as outlined
in the Bristol Cycling Strategy action plan (see City wide movement
section)

Page 68

Explore, deliver, and enable changes in parking provision, including
removal and/or relocation of on-street parking on high streets that are
congested transport corridors and explore the potential for new off-street
public car parks at local centres to replace lost spaces.
Explore and enable better connectivity and reliability around the city
by bus and community transport, working with bus operators to
investigate new services, improve information and explore options for
transport on demand and community transport services. This will be
addressed in the Bus Strategy (see City wide movement section).
Deliver & Enable improvements in road layouts including reducing the
width of junction mouths, enforcing appropriate speeds and improving
access points to improve safety, create a more attractive walking and
cycling environment.
Explore, Deliver & Enable innovations in freight movements to seek to
reduce the impact of heavy freight vehicles and provide appropriate
loading arrangements as outlined in the freight strategy (see City wide
movement section).

Page 37

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Neighbourhoods and residential streets
Bristol is made up of a number of neighbourhoods that each has its own
identity. Besides the corridors and local centres, the neighbourhoods
contain residential streets where our citizens live. The neighbourhoods
and residential streets are designed differently as a result of the different
eras in which housing has been developed. This ranges from narrow,
Victorian streets where houses do not have off street parking to wide
modern streets, shared spaces and home zones. It is important that
citizens feel safe and confident to walk and cycle in their neighbourhoods
to access local services and connect by public transport to other parts of
the city to access jobs, education, leisure and health care without relying
on a car.
Outcome #14 | Key facilities and services increasingly accessible to
all citizens without the need to rely on a car.

Outcome #15 | Safer places to live by working with citizens to design
and deliver measures to improve movement and liveability in our
neighbourhoods.

Along with our West of England partners, Deliver & Enable the design
and development of communities that promote sustainable and
healthy transport, supported by high housing densities, with the highest
densities around public transport facilities.

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Along with our West of England partners, Explore opportunities for
releasing land currently used for transport infrastructure to support
housing growth, including exploring opportunities at Cumberland Basin
and Lawrence Hill roundabout
Deliver & Enable mixed use development in co-operation with colleagues
in housing and major projects to provide a range of amenities within a
short distance of where people live and reduce the need to travel by car.
Deliver & Enable neighbourhoods to reduce the negative impact of
through traffic and ensure through routes are appropriate to improve
local air quality.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Explore refining existing Residents’ Parking Schemes and extend only
where there is demand from residents, and investigate alternative
approaches.
Deliver & Enable improved compliance with 20mph limits with more
awareness raising and streets designed for appropriate speeds and
investigate introducing new 20mph limits where there is local demand.
Deliver routine maintenance works and other projects to improve the
layout of residential areas to create better places.

Page 69

Deliver & Enable the development of the all ages and abilities cycle
network, helping to develop a child friendly city cycle network. Develop
cycling quietways through neighbourhoods, connecting to wider cycle
network.
Deliver and Enable improvements in bus services to better serve
neighbourhoods with poor public transport provision, working with bus
operators to explore new service options and community transport.
Enable community involvement in street design and use. Community
led transport projects need to be safe and adopted and maintained by the
community in conjunction with the Council. The Council needs to be
mindful of its legal responsibilities as the highways authority.
Deliver appropriate SuDS schemes to be incorporated into any local
transport and public space improvements, based on ground investigations.
Enable communities to report transport issues, through promoting and
improving the existing Fix My Street website and open up data to allow
more efficient and demand responsive services.
Explore methods to communicate and engage with communities at a
local level to encourage use of sustainable transport

Page 38

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

Implementing and Funding the Bristol
Transport Strategy
The Bristol Transport Strategy covers up to 2036. There are outcomes that
can be implemented in the short term and others that will require longer
term planning. All outcomes are dependent on available funding. There
are a range of sources that we will explore to fund the outcomes to deliver
our objectives and ultimately our vision. This section takes each outcome
and sets a timescale for delivery and possible funding sources.
Implementation

Page 70

First, it is important to set out the process by which projects and schemes
are delivered. Each scheme will take different amounts of time to complete
this cycle depending on the scale. In addition, with technology changes,
things can happen quickly and we need to be able to respond to and
embrace new technologies as required, therefore in some cases we will
need to be flexible to grasp opportunities when they arise. However, this
demonstrates the steps that are generally required to implement transport
projects.
1. Schemes and projects identified in Bristol
Transport Strategy (or for schemes affecting the
West of England as a whole, the Joint Local
Transport Plan, as informed by the Joint Transport
Study)

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

4. Funding required for options and concept preliminary
design work to develop a robust business case

5. Relevant funding sources identified to bid for funding

6. Gain approval to bid for funding through internal decision
making process

7. Win funding- draft up detail of the project

8. Consult on the detail of the project

9. Make any changes as a result of consultation

10. Deliver project

2. Plan is adopted by senior management, Members and
Mayor

3. Further detailed work is carried out in the form of
feasibility studies or detailed strategies to identify the
Page 39
deliverability of projects

11. Monitor outcomes of the project, refining schemes and
learning lessons for the future

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Funding
The projects and schemes identified in this plan can help to deliver a step
change in how people move around the city. Along with our West of
England partners, we are planning transformative changes that will benefit
Bristol and the region. We have also set out projects and actions that we
will take forward as a city to achieve our vision. All of which adds up to a
large price tag, which is significantly more funding than has historically
been available. As such, new sources of funding will be needed to deliver
the objectives and vision of the Bristol Transport Strategy.
Potential funding sources are:



Page 71










Local Transport Planning maintenance and block grant from
Central Government
Major scheme bids to the Department for Transport (DfT) and
other national bidding opportunities
Council resources including parking income

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
maximum impact from any bids we make. This could mean working in
partnership with colleagues from housing, flood risk management,
innovation or air quality to make bids that achieve our joint objectives.
As of March 2017 the West of England Combine Authority (WECA) was
established as part of devolution deal from Central Government. This
includes a devolved budget of £30m per year for the next 30 years to
include funding towards transport. This funding will be focused on large
strategic transport projects that contribute to our vision and connect
housing with employment sites and services across the sub-region.
Smaller transport projects that contribute to achieving our vision will
continue to be funded through Local Growth Deal allocations from the
Local Enterprise Partnership and bids to Central Government, of which we
have a very successful track record of winning and delivering.
However, even with these sources of funding there is likely to be a large
funding gap and additional funding would be needed with potential sources
including a Workplace Parking Levy and congestion charging.

Bids for grants from Local Enterprise Partnership including
Revolving Infrastructure Fund and Local Growth Fund

Workplace Parking Levy

Community Infrastructure Levy and s106 contributions

A Workplace Parking Levy can be applied by a highway authority under
the 2000 Transport Act, where employers are charged a fee per private
parking space on their site. Employers may choose to pass this charge on
to their staff, which can encourage staff to consider alternative ways of
travelling to work if they have to pay to park. The employer may choose to
pay the charge themselves, which could in turn encourage the employer to
consider reducing the number of parking spaces they have on their site
(and potentially expand their business premises without acquiring more
land), which is therefore a measure of parking control to influence how
staff choose to travel to work.

Devolution gain share
Private investment
Workplace Parking Levies and/or Congestion Charging
Other bids and funding sources such as Innovation Funding.

Much of the existing funding is already earmarked for schemes and
essential operation of Council transport services, so additional funding
sources are likely to be needed to deliver our vision.
All measures outlined in this strategy are high priority in order to achieve
our vision, however we will seek to package schemes together to achieve

Page 40

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Previous assessments undertaken for the West of England show that
there is a potential for a workplace parking levy to deliver an estimated 2%
reduction in private car trips.

Case Study: Nottingham workplace parking levy

Page 72

Nottingham introduced a Workplace Parking Levy in 2011. It levies a
charge to employers that have 11 or more private parking spaces on their
site. The levy is charged at £379 per annum per space, which is around
£1.50 per work day. Over £44m has been raised in revenue since
charging began. The administrative costs of running the scheme take less
than 5% of the revenue raised, meaning a large amount is reinvested in
transport improvements in the city as identified in the Local Transport
Plan. This has led to doubling the size of the tram network and
redeveloping the city’s rail station to support the electric bus network. The
revenue raised has also been used as match funding to bid for external
funding. Workplaces that are required to pay the charge are offered grants
to enable staff to cycle to work. The levy scheme has resulted in a 4.5%
increase in bus and tram patronage. Many employers in Nottingham were
sceptical of the scheme before it was implemented, however, discussion
with Nottingham Council suggests it is now accepted as a part of doing
business in the city. No major employers left the city and inward
investment has increased since the scheme was introduced, with
businesses taking advantage of the improved transport infrastructure,
creating 2,000 new jobs since 2012.
Photo of Nottingham tram
To fund transformational transport improvements such as an a light metro
system, a Bristol scheme would need to cover the wider urban area and
have a higher rate than the Nottingham scheme. This could potentially
unlock up to £1.5bn of transport investment over 30 years.
57

Page 41

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
Road user charging
Road user charging has been implemented in various locations around the
world; the most applicable location for comparison purposes is the
congestion charge in London. The London scheme is an area based
scheme operating for 12 hours per day on weekdays only and uses
cameras to record number plates of vehicles entering and leaving the
zone.
Road user charging in Bristol was first suggested in the 1975 Land Use
Transportation Study and has appeared in several local transport plans
58
since then. An assessment carried out in 2013 proposed a central area
zone. A fee of £5 per day for all users was proposed, operational between
7am and 10am Monday to Friday. The expected annual income after
operating costs were removed was between £5m and £20m per year
dependent on the size of the zone and the number of people avoiding the
zone. To fund transformational transport schemes such as a light metro
system, a wider area scheme could be considered, and could potentially
raise a similar amount to an area wide Workplace Parking Levy. Previous
assessments undertaken by the West of England show that there is the
potential to deliver a significant impact on demand for travel by car - an
estimated 6-8% reduction of private car trips.
Clean Air Zone
As mentioned in previous sections, a feasibility study is currently underway
on implementing a Clean Air Zone in the city, which could include a charge
for vehicles. Any potential charging scheme in future will have to assess
the impact of multiple schemes in order to ensure objectives of this
strategy are being met, including the impact on providing an accessible
transport system for all.
We understand these are controversial solutions, and as part of the
consultation on this document we would like to seek views of the

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

public and stakeholders for transformational transport improvements
such as a light metro system that could involve implementation of a
workplace parking levy and/or road user charging charge.

Page 73
Page 42

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Funding and implementation plan
Include a timeline with short, medium, long term goals
Outcome

Page 74

Citywide: Outcome #1 | Efficient movement of traffic
around the city, with increased resilience of the
network and minimised impacts of congestion and air
pollution.
Citywide: Outcome #2 | On and off street parking
managed efficiently to encourage use of sustainable
transport and tackle congestion, while providing
options that support the city’s 24 hour economy.
Citywide: Outcome #3 | Reduced excess lorry and van
travel in the city (especially during peak hours),
working with industry to find cleaner alternatives for
the movement of goods.
Citywide: Outcome #4 | Public transport to be visibly
integrated, convenient and reliable to enable people
to move around the city in a more efficient way.
Citywide: Outcome #5 | Walking to be safe, pleasant,
accessible and the first choice for local journeys and
combined with public transport for longer journeys.
Citywide: Outcome #6 | Cycling to be safe, simple,
accessible and convenient, either as an option for the
whole journey or as part of a journey combined with
public transport.
Citywide: Outcome #7 | A resilient, safe and wellmaintained network to enable continuous movement
of people and goods, using smart technologies.
Citywide: Outcome #8 | More people making
sustainable and healthy transport choices by
improving engagement with communities, schools
and businesses.
Citywide: Outcome #9 | New developments to be
innovative in their approach to prioritise sustainable
transport options and address the impact on the

Page 43

Partnerships for
delivery
WECA, air quality
colleagues, Highways
England

Implementation
timescale
Medium

Potential funding sources

Destination Bristol,
business improvement
districts, car park
operators
Freight operators,
WECA

Medium

Parking income

Medium

Devolution gain share, workplace parking
levy, congestion charging, private
investment, S106 contributions

Bus operators,
Transport Focus,
WECA
Walking Alliance,
Living Streets

Medium

Devolution gain share, workplace parking
levy, congestion charging, private
investment
Local Growth Fund, DfT funding, S106/278
agreements

Sustrans, Bristol
Cycling Campaign

Short to Medium

Local Growth Fund, DfT funding, S106/278
agreements

WECA, developers

On going

Community groups,
schools, businesses

Short to Medium

Developers, WECA

On going

Local Transport Planning maintenance and
block grant from Central Government, S106
contributions, community infrastructure levy
DfT funding, S106 contributions, workplace
parking levy. Also, proportion of
infrastructure funding to be allocated for
promotion.
S106 contributions, community infrastructure
levy

Short to Medium

Devolution gain share, parking income,
workplace parking levy, congestion charging

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
existing network.
City Centre: Outcome #10 | A city centre that is
accessible by active and sustainable transport and
attractive to live, work and visit, enhancing its status
as the foremost shopping and cultural centre in the
South West.
Corridors: Outcome #11 | More efficient transport
corridors to move the largest number of people in the
space available.

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

WECA
Network Rail
Bus operators
Retail and leisure
operators
WECA, bus operators

Medium to Long

Devolution gain share, parking income,
workplace parking levy, congestion charging

Medium to Long

Devolution gain share, parking income,
workplace parking levy, congestion charging

Medium

Bids for grants from Local Enterprise
Partnership including Revolving
Infrastructure Fund and Local Growth Fund,
Community Infrastructure Levy and s106
contributions, private investment

Local Centres: Outcome #13 | Reduced impact of
motorised traffic on local centres creating better
public spaces that are more accessible by walking,
cycling and reliable public transport.

Business improvement
districts
Bus operators
Neighbourhood groups
Transport
stakeholders
Bus operators
Freight operators
Transport
stakeholders

Medium to Long

Neighbourhoods: Outcome #14 | Key facilities and
services increasingly accessible to all citizens
without the need to rely on a car.

Neighbourhood
groups, bus operators,
transport stakeholders

Short to Medium

Workplace parking levy, congestion
charging, Bids for grants from Local
Enterprise Partnership including Revolving
Infrastructure Fund and Local Growth Fund,
Community Infrastructure Levy and
S106/278 agreements, private investment
Local Growth Fund, DfT funding

Neighbourhoods: Outcome #15 | Safer places to live
by working with citizens to design and deliver
measures to improve movement and liveability in our
neighbourhoods.
Timescales:

Neighbourhood groups

Short to Medium

Local Centres: Outcome #12 | Supported and
enhanced local centres and high streets, recognising
that they provide key services and facilities, and can
also be transport corridors and destination points for
visitors.

Page 75

Local Growth Fund, DfT funding, S106/278
agreements

Short term: < 5 years
Medium term: 5-10 years
Long term: >10 years

Page 44

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

Key:
WECA: West of England Combined Authority
DfT: Department for Transport

Page 76
Page 45

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

How will we measure success?
In order to know whether we are achieving success with our approaches as set out in this plan, it is important to understand whether we are meeting our
objectives. As a reminder, the objectives of the Bristol Transport Strategy are:

Page 77



Provide transport improvements to accommodate increased demand from growth in housing, jobs & regeneration on an already congested network
with complex movements from within and outside the city boundary.



Promote equality with an inclusive transport system that provides realistic transport options for all



Create healthy places, promoting active transport, improving air quality, and implementing a safe systems approach to road safety

Create better places that make better use of our streets and enable point to point journeys to be made efficiently

Enable reliable journeys by minimising the negative impacts of congestion and increasing network efficiency and resilience

Support sustainable growth by enabling efficient movement of people and goods, reducing carbon emissions and embracing new technologies

The success against the objectives can be measured in a number of ways using known data sources, and we will work closely with colleagues in academic
institutions to identify methods to measure success for those that do not have clear data sources. We will need to establish a baseline from which to begin
measuring our success and this will be within the first year of adoption of the plan. From then on, monitoring of the Bristol Transport Strategy will be reported
annually online on the Bristol City Council website.

Page 46

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy
Objective
Provide transport improvements to accommodate
increased demand from growth in housing, jobs &
regeneration on an already congested network with
complex movements from within and outside the city
boundary

Promote equality with an inclusive transport system
that provides realistic transport options for all

Page 78

Create healthy places, promoting active transport,
improving air quality, and implementing a safe
systems approach to road safety

Create better places that make better use of our
streets and enable point to point journeys to be made
efficiently
Enable reliable journeys by minimising the negative
impacts of congestion and increasing network
efficiency and resilience
Support sustainable growth by enabling efficient
movement of people and goods, reducing carbon
emissions and embracing new technologies

Page 47

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS
What to measure
Number of houses delivered
Number of people who are homeless
Number of jobs created
Number of people who are unemployed
Occupancy rates of buildings, both residential and
commercial
Percentage of people travelling to work by
sustainable modes
For each neighbourhood, provision of cycle routes
connecting to employment areas
For each neighbourhood, proximity of a bus stop
with high frequency services (10 minutes or less)
Awareness of transport options
Affordability of transport options
Satisfaction of transport options
Percentage of people travelling to work by active
modes
Percentage of people travelling on corridors by
active modes
Number of people killed or seriously injured on
roads
Levels of air pollution, compliance with air quality
standards
Levels of EV take up
Perception of safety
Satisfaction of local area
Percentage of new schemes introducing SuDS

Journey time reliability
Levels of bus and rail patronage
Punctuality of services
Journey time to measure congestion levels as
development grows
Percentage of people travelling to work sustainably

Data source
Planning applications
Data from housing teams
Economic development records and data
from housing team
Data from employment and skills team
Economic development records
Journey to work data
Data collected when cycle projects are
delivered
TravelWest journey planner
Qualitative data- will need input from
academic colleagues
Bus fare data
Quality of Life survey. Transport Focus data
Journey to work data
Modal split monitoring on key corridors
KSI data
Air quality monitor data
DfT figures
Bike Life report
Quality of Life survey
Flood risk management data

National Bus / Rail satisfaction surveys
Bus/rail operator data
Bus/rail operator data
ANPR data to time journey across city
centre cordon
Journey to work data

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

List of contributors

Page 79
Page 48

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

References
1

Sunday Times (2017) Sunday Times Best Place to Live Guide
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (2015) English Indices of Deprivation 2015
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Spatial Plan
4
Bristol City Council (2015) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) report 2015
5
Air Quality Consultants (2017) Health Impacts of Air Pollution in Bristol
6
Department for Transport (2010-18) Congestion Statistics
7
Goodwin, P., Hallett, S., Kenny, F., Stokes, G. 1991 Transport: The New Realism. Transport Studies Unit, University of Oxford.
8
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
9
Sunday Times (2017) Sunday Times Best Place to Live Guide
10
Office of National Statistics (2011) Method of Travel to Work by Local Authority 2011 Census
11
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (2015) English Indices of Deprivation 2015
12
Bristol City Council (2015) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) report 2015
13
Gössling, S. 2016 Urban transport justice, Journal of Transport Geography, 54: 1-9
14
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
15
Transport for London (2017) Healthy streets for London
16
https://www.tfgm.com/oxford-road
17
Nottingham City Council (2011) Nottingham Local Transport Plan
18
http://www.eltis.org/
19
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
20
Office of National Statistics (2011) Method of Travel to Work by Local Authority 2011 Census
21
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
22
Bristol City Council (2015) A Safe Systems Approach to Road Safety in Bristol
23
Bristol City Council (2015) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) report 2015
24
Pteg (2015) Ticket to Thrive. The role of urban public transport in tackling unemployment
25
Lee IM, et al. (2012). Effect of physical inactivity on major non-communicable diseases worldwide: an analysis of burden of disease and life expectancy.
Lancet 380: 219–29.
26
Scarborough P, Bhatnagar P, Wickramasinghe KK, Allender S, Foster C, Rayner M (2011) The economic burden of ill health due to diet, physical inactivity,
smoking, alcohol and obesity in the UK: an update to 2006–07 NHS costs. Journal of Public Health 33 (4): 527-535
27
Ossa D and Hutton J (2002) The economic burden of physical inactivity in England. London: MEDTAP International
28
Air Quality Consultants Ltd. (2017). Health Impacts of Air Pollution in Bristol
29
Barratt, B et al (2013) London’s Environment Research Group (ERG) and Guy’s and St Thomas’ Foundation Trust.
30
Office of National Statistics (2011) Method of Travel to Work by Local Authority 2011 Census
31
Bristol City Council (2018) Quality of Life Survey
32
Air Quality Consultants Ltd. (2017). Health Impacts of Air Pollution in Bristol
2
3

Page 80

Page 49

Version 06/04/2018

Bristol Transport Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT - WORK IN PROGRESS

33

Department for Transport (2017) Road Safety Data
Sustrans (2017) Bike Life Report
35
Bristol City Council (2018) Quality of Life Survey
36
SACTRA, 1994 Trunk roads and the generation of traffic. Standing Advisory Committee on Trunk Road Assessment. London: HMSO.
37
Department for Transport (2017) Annual Bus Statistics
38
Currie, G., Wallis, I. 2008 Effective ways to grow urban bus markets – a synthesis of evidence, Journal of Transport Geography, 6: 419-429.
39
West of England (2015) Bus Punctuality Data
40
Bristol City Council (2017) Bristol Transport Assets and Maintenance data
41
Department for Transport (2009) Impact Assessment of the Carbon Reduction Strategy for Transport.
42
Bristol City Council (2015) Our Resilient Future: A Framework for Climate and Energy Security
43
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
44
Centre for Connected and Autonomous Vehicles (2017) Market forecast for connected and autonomous vehicles
45
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
46
Urban Transport Group (2014) Bus Priority Works
47
West of England Councils (2017) West of England Joint Transport Study
48
Air Quality Consultants Ltd. (2017). Health Impacts of Air Pollution in Bristol
49
Bornioli, A (2015) The Influence of the Built Environment on Walking Experience- A Bristol Case Study. University of the West of England
50
Johnston, I. 2010 Beyond “best practice” road safety thinking and systems management – A case for culture change research, Safety Science, 1175-1181.
51
Bristol Health Technical Report (2013) J1899 F2.pdf AQC
52
Bristol City Council (2016) Traffic Counts
53
Department for Transport (2016) Traffic Master Data
54
Department for Transport (2017) Road Safety Data
55
Sustrans (2006) Retail vitality surveys
56
Urban Transport Group (2014) Bus Priority Works
57
Nottingham City Council (2011) Nottingham Local Transport Plan
58
Atkins (2013) Bristol Road Pricing Scoping Study
34

Page 81

Page 50

Version 06/04/2018

Joint Local Transport Plan
for West of England
Page 82

Bristol Transport Strategy
The emerging transport policy and strategy
documents to be consulted in 2018

Joint Spatial Plan sets out locations for
housing and job growth across West of
England for next 20 years
(see these symbols on the map)

Joint Local Transport Plan sets out the
transport vision for the West of England for
the next 20 years, which includes measures
identified in the Joint Transport Study and
more

Page 83

Joint Transport Study
completed in 2017 identified
the transport requirements
to connect new housing and
jobs (as shown on the map)

Bristol Transport Strategy focuses the JLTP down to city
level and sets out the transport vision for Bristol for
the next 20 years

Joint Spatial Plan (JSP)- housing and
jobs and mitigating transport
measures to 2036
Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
separate to but supports
JLTP and local plans and
strategies

Page 84

Produced by West of
England (with input from
WoE authorities)

Bristol Clean Air Strategy- separate to
but informs BTS

Joint Transport Study (JTS) identified mitigating
transport measures for housing and jobs and
overall transport vision to 2036
Key Route Network
(KRN)- separate to but
supports JLTP

West of England Bus
Strategy- separate to
but supports JLTP

Joint Local Transport Plan (JLTP)policies and actions to achieve
transport vision to 2036

Bristol Transport Strategy (BTS)outcomes and actions to achieve
Bristol’s transport vision to 2036

Produced by Bristol
Various transport mode, topic
and location specific strategies
and plans, mostly to begin in
2019

Bristol Local Plan- will
contain references to BTS,
Clean Air Strategy and land
safeguarded for wider
schemes identified in JLTP
and LCWIP

Joint Spatial Plan (JSP) delivery (homes and jobs and
transport mitigation measures)
Period that Joint Local Transport Plan (JLTP) covers, which
includes JSP transport mitigations

Page 85

Period that Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) and
Bus Strategy and Key Route Network (KRN) cover
Period that Bristol Transport Strategy covers, which includes JLTP,
LCWIP, Bus Strategy and KRN measures that affect Bristol

2018

2036
From 2019: mode and topic specific plans and strategies
to be developed and consulted on, e.g. Bristol Walking
Strategy, Bristol Cycling Strategy, Bristol Parking Strategy

JLTP

Page 86

• Statutory sub-regional plan
• WECA and N Somerset
• Contains strategies that affect movement
across the sub-region
• Contains major transport schemes (from
Joint Transport Study)

JLTP

Page 87

• Objectives:
• Support sustainable economic growth
• Promote equality and accessibility
• Improve air quality and respond to climate change
• Contribute to better health, wellbeing, safety and
security
• Structure: Improving connectivity• Beyond the West of England
• Within the West of England
• Neighbourhoods and Local

JLTP

Page 88

JLTP

Page 89

• Major schemes from Joint Transport Study, including:
• Mass transit
• Greater Bristol Bus Network 2
• Park and Ride
• Walking and Cycling network
• MetroWest rail
• Cost of schemes identified in the plan: £10bn
• Funding gap- suggested measures to fund schemes to be
tested in public consultation include road user charging,
workplace parking levy, business rate supplements, council
tax precept

Bristol Transport Strategy

Page 90

• First of its kind
• Fills gap between West of England Joint
Local Transport Plan and mode/topic specific
strategies
• Provides a framework for transport policy in
Bristol
• Written in partnership with Mayor’s
Congestion Task Group

Bristol Transport Strategy

Page 91

• Vision:
‘Our vision for Bristol is to be a well-connected city
that enables people to move around efficiently with
increased transport options that are accessible and
inclusive to all. We will deliver an improved
sustainable and resilient transport network that that
supports Bristol’s vibrant independent local centres
and neighbourhoods and connects to an attractive
and thriving city centre.’

Bristol Transport Strategy
•

Page 92

Objectives:
• Provide transport improvements to accommodate increased
demand from growth in housing, jobs & regeneration on an
already congested network with complex movements from within
and outside the city boundary.
• Promote equality with an inclusive transport system that provides
realistic transport options for all.
• Create healthy places, promoting active transport, improving air
quality, and implementing a safe systems approach to road safety.
• Create better places that make better use of our streets and enable
point to point journeys to be made efficiently.
• Enable reliable journeys by minimising the negative impacts of
congestion and increasing network efficiency and resilience.
• Support sustainable growth by enabling efficient movement of
people and goods, reducing carbon emissions and embracing new
technologies

Bristol Transport Strategy

Page 93

Structure:
• City Wide movement
• City Centre
• Corridors
• Local Centres
• Neighbourhoods and Residential Streets
• Implementation and funding plan

Bristol Transport Strategy

Page 94

• Sets out our approach to implementing
actions
• Where appropriate, states who we will work
with
• Major transport schemes in JLTP that effect
Bristol
• Includes road user charging and workplace
parking levy as funding mechanism to gain
feedback in consultation

Public consultation

Page 95

• Due to go out in October 2018 together
• Methods include:
• Videos to explain context of each plan
• Budget simulator tool (JLTP measures)
• Online questionnaires
• Materials to be put in public centres to
direct to website
• Social media toolkits
• Stakeholder events

Agenda Item 10
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
26th July 2018
Report of:

Laura Pye, Head of Culture

Title:

Trusts and Mutualisation’s

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Laura Pye, Head of Culture
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 92 24084

Summary
There will be a discussion with the Commission Members about the pros and cons of
setting up independent trusts or mutuals to run services/ building previous run internally
by the council. The discussion will mainly focus on the experiences learnt from the
development of Bristol Music Trust who now run Colston Hall as well as exploring some
other examples from outside of Bristol.

Page 96

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

1. Proposal:
Members will receive a presentation by the Head of Culture at the scrutiny meeting.
The presentation slides will be uploaded with the minutes after the meeting.
2. Policy
N/A
3. Consultation
N/A
4. Risk Assessment
N/A
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
1. Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decisionmaker considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following
“protected characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker
must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due
regard, in particular, to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of people who do not share
it (in relation to disabled people, this includes, in particular, steps to take
account of disabled persons' disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

Page 97

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission

ii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in
particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
6. Legal and Resource Implications
N/A
Appendices:
None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None

Page 98

Agenda Item 11
Name of Meeting – Report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
18:00 Wednesday 26th July 2018
Report of: Zoe Wilcox, Director of Planning
Title: Clean Air Plan - Engagement Programme and Funding Bid
Ward: City Wide
Officers Presenting Report: Alex Minshull / Adam Crowther / Jodi Savickas / Kathy Derrick
/ Mark Leach / Jacob Pryor
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9224379
Recommendation
That the Scrutiny commission note the planned activity to develop the Clean Air Plan
and to advise on the engagement activities and clean air fund bid.
The significant issues in the report are:
In November 2016, Full Council unanimously supported a motion for the Council to
develop a Clean Air Action Plan and to implement a Clean Air Zone. Bristol City Council
is developing a Clean Air Plan for the City to meet legal standards for Nitrogen Dioxide
in the shortest possible time to improve the health of residents and visitors to Bristol
Public concern about air pollution in the city is high (72%). A significant amount of
public engagement and consultation is planned and members are asked to advise
officers on these plans to help ensure the most effective public input to the Clean Air
Plan.
Bristol City Council is planning to bid to the Government’s Clean Air Fund for measures
to mitigate the impacts of Clean Air Plan, in particular on low income households and
small and medium sized businesses, and members are asked to advise on the
proposals.

Page 99

Name of Meeting – Report

1. Summary
Bristol City Council is developing a Clean Air Plan to improve public health. This is in line with the
Full Council Motion of November 2016 and Statutory Direction from Government, and it forms
part of the Council’s business plan.
In March 2018 Cabinet considered the results of the initial studies and has approved the next stage
of the project. This will assess 5 options in more detail and select a Preferred Option which will be
submitted to Government as our Clean Air Plan. Four of these five options include proposals for
charging certain classes of vehicles to enter a defined are of the city. For further details please see
the Cabinet Report at:
https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/documents/s19804/Clean%20Air%20Plan%20%20Cabinet%20Report%20and%20Appendices%20%20Final%20with%20Early%20Measures%20Fund%20included%20-with%20legal.pdf
We consider that a significant of public engagement and consultation is important to ensure that
we develop the best possible Clean Air Plan. The Scrutiny Commission’s views are sought on range
and scope of the engagement work.
Bristol City Council has the opportunity to bid for funding from the government’s Clean Air Fund
which totals £220m nationally.
The main purpose of this fund is to mitigate the impact of the Clean Air Plan on residents, with a
particular focus on low-income groups and Small and Medium size Enterprises (SMEs).
It is not clear from conversations with the Joint Air Quality Unit what share of funding Bristol could
expect from the total funding available but an initial range of between £4 and £15m is anticipated.
Bristol City Council will be in competition with other local authorities for a share of this funding
and the proposal will form part of the business case for the broader Clean Air Plan. The timescales
for the fund are challenging with schemes required to be delivered in advance of the Clean Air
Plan.
Infrastructure schemes and ‘soft measures’ have been longlisted for inclusion in Bristol’s bid to the
Clean Air Fund and their suitability for funding will require ongoing liaison with the Joint Air Quality
Unit and formal approval through Bristol’s Cabinet process.
Strategically it would be prudent for the council to keep as many options on the table as possible
while further work is undertaken to establish the cost, effectiveness and deliverability of the
schemes over the next 4 weeks. A comprehensive package of measures for the Clean Air Fund will
need to be finalised by mid-August to allow for the necessary modelling work to take place.
2. The engagement programme
The majority of Bristol’s residents are concerned about air quality and traffic pollution in their
neighbourhood. In the 2017 Quality of Life Survey some 72% said it was a problem or a serious
problem.

Page 100

Name of Meeting – Report

The Clean Air Plan will include policies and projects to reduce pollution which will require change
in peoples’ and businesses’ travel choices. We need to ensure that, prior to formal consultation on
specific proposals, there is good understanding of the air quality problem in Bristol and potential
solutions. We also aim to ensure that residents and businesses can engage with the process of
identifying policies to support the key interventions and mitigate some of the adverse effects.
2.1

Timescales
Public engagement has already commenced and will continue until November to contribute to the
Cabinet’s selection of its preferred option and to inform the preparation of parallel bid to the
Government’s Clean Air Fund.
Formal consultation will also be undertaken

2.2

Financial
The Clean Air Plan engagement programme is wholly funded by Government. Currently they have
approved funding of £125k for engagement work and £75k for formal consultation. A further
funding proposal is being made to government and we shall consider whether additional resources
are needed.

2.3

Audience and stakeholder analysis
Almost everyone in the city is either affected air pollution or by the Clean Air Plan proposals and
therefore the programme is both wide ranging and targeted to engage key audiences based on
severity of the impact and the choices available to them. Key audiences identified include:
 Professional drivers – taxis, HGVs, LGVs, deliveries, carers and emergency services
 The business community
 Seldom heard communities and groups
 Communities living within the Medium Zone and those living in outlying parts of the city
 Commuters from outside Bristol
 Young people, schools
 Allies and partners who want to communicate the issues and the options

2.4

Summary of engagement activities:

2.4.1 Activity to date:
Drop-In Events and public stalls in a number of locations around the city including Cabot Circus,
Gloucester Road, Bedminster, College Green (National Clean Air Day) and Bristol Harbourside
Festival.
2.4.2





Workshops and Briefings:
Taxi Forum, Emergency Services, Congestion Task Group, Employers Groups
Training for allied organisations to communicate on air pollution and Clean Air Plan and toolkit
Bristol Green Capital Partnership Clean Air Gathering (70-80 organisations represented)
Informal conversations with Motorcycle organisations and specialist tow truck companies

Page 101

Name of Meeting – Report

2.4.3 Digital and online:
An on-line campaign is being undertaken with twitter and website presence.
This includes an FAQ and will develop as the engagement work progresses.
2.4.4 Planned engagement activity:
 Ujima Radio takeover 30th August
 Up Our Street – September 11th or 25th
 West of England Bus Operator Association
 5 x focus neighbourhoods (peripheral, deprived, most adversely impacted, events “owned”
locally)
 Workshops: City Centre Business Improvement District (BID) 27th July
 Invitations to the following to attend our Surgeries RAC and AA, Bristol Waste, Federation
of Small Businesses (FSB), Freight Consolidation Centre, Haulage and Freight Associations
(x3), National Federation of Builders, parcel delivery companies, St Philips Fruit and Veg
market.
 Information packs at all libraries for people who do not have digital access or prefer to
access information hard copy.
2.4.5











Other activity:
Councillor Briefings
Mailing to c. 130,000 residential addresses and potentially 13,400 commercial addresses.
Schools programme
Travel West/Living Streets activity within businesses
Business West and The Initiative business engagement
Activity to target Tradespeople (Builders, Plumbers, Electricians, Plasterers and Carpenters etc)
Online and digital (Citizen Space)
Comms channels such as bus stop advertising, commercial radio drive time ads etc.
Equalities work
Woodburning stoves and open fires leaflet, web page etc

2.5

Process for feeding engagement outputs into technical work
At each event the BCC officers and Jacobs Consultants compile a list of the comments and
feedback they have recorded as well as improvements for future events. This is then fed into the
ongoing, work on the options.

3.0



Key issues are that are coming out of the consultation, so far,:
So far the Majority of people are supportive and many people who drive vehicles which may be
subject to a charge are supportive as they recognise the importance of improving public health.
A significant number of people want the city council to go further, with more pedestrianisation,
more car-free areas, more cycling infrastructure.

Page 102

Name of Meeting – Report









Radically better public and rapid transport was frequently mentioned, and to a lesser extent
the subsidising of electric vehicles
There is a widely held view that the Clean Air Plan is too narrow, because it only focuses on
NOx and only on achieving legal limits
Concern from residents who live in areas just outside the zone, that air quality will be worse
because of the zone outside the zone. Some want the boundaries changed to include other
neighbourhoods, including St George, partly due to major roads within the AQMA that have
schools close to them. We anticipate that any charging zone will improve air quality outside
the zone as well as inside it but this will be tested in the next phase of the study.
Concern about people parking in residential areas just outside the zone where there are no
RPZ, in particular the Bishopston area.
People concerned about knock on effect of traffic from the small zone, with vehicles diverting
around it onto other, and in particular residential roads.
People mostly concerned for others, e.g. carers, tradesmen, people with large families and
young children, people with special needs should be exempt.

3. Policy
Bristol City Council is under a Statutory Direction from Government to develop a Clean Air Plan
to achieve compliance with the Nitrogen Dioxide Limit Values in the shortest possible time.
4. Consultation
a) Internal
The engagement programme and proposals for the Clean Air Fund bid are being considered by
the Mayoral Air Pollution working Group, chaired by Cllrs Dudd and Threlfall which includes
colleagues from Public Health and Transport who are able to input the experience of previous
initiatives.
We have also taken into account the contributions made by Scrutiny including the Air Quality
Task and Finish Group.
b) External
For the engagement programme we reviewed national best practice and academic work
especially by the two Bristol universities, e.g. The Centre for the Study of Behaviour Change
and Influence (CSBCI) at UWE
The engagement work is informing the Clean Air Fund Bid.
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
The equalities team were consulted early on in the creation of the CAP engagement programme. The
engagement work will seek to understand the impacts of the proposals on a range of people in
the community including those from equalities groups and will inform subsequent decision
making.

Page 103

Name of Meeting – Report

In developing the Clean Air Fund bid we shall have regard to the potential impacts on equalities groups
and be informed by the engagement work.
Appendices:
Appendix 1: Engagement Programme Materials (Banners, Leaflet, Newsletters, SOC summary)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

Page 104

Name of Meeting – Report

Page 105

CLEANER AIR FOR BRISTOL
Improving air quality in Bristol

May 2018 Version 1.2

A Clean Air Plan for Bristol
Introduction
Air pollution is a big problem. According to the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, air pollution is
thought to be one factor in some 40,000 premature deaths in the UK each year. There is also evidence it can
cause long-term lung damage in babies and children and contribute to lung and heart disease in older people.
The main source of air pollution in Bristol is from motor vehicles, particularly diesel engines, with high levels of
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) caused by exhaust emissions. NO2 pollution levels at some of our roads often exceed
national target levels (currently 40 μg/m3 based on scientific evidence).
As part of its National Air Quality Action Plan, the Government has instructed 28 Local Authorities, including
Bristol, to improve air quality and meet the NO2 target levels ‘in the shortest possible time’ and by 2021 at the
latest.

What are we doing?
In 2017, we produced a long list of measures and ideas to reduce NO2 levels in Bristol. We assessed this long list
against various factors, such as impact on air quality, impact on public health, and economic impacts. This led to a
shortlist of five packages of measures for more detailed consideration. These five options were presented as part
of a Strategic Outline Case (SOC) that was approved by Council Cabinet in March 2018. Cabinet also approved the
principle of introducing a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) that could include charging high-polluting vehicles.
No decision on a preferred option has been made yet, but a preferred package must be selected before the end
of December 2018. The preferred package must bring about the necessary improvements in air quality by 2021 or
before.

Our shortlisted packages
We have five packages of measures that are capable of meeting the Government’s requirements. These packages
will now be assessed in more detail and consider their impacts on residents, health and the local economy. We
also must ensure packages can be delivered on time to meet the 2021 deadline.
Package
Size of Clean Air Zone
Class of Vehicles
Charged
Non-charging
Measures

1

2

3

4

5

Medium

Medium

Medium

Small

Small

None

Class C

Class D

Class C

Class D

Yes - 16

Yes - 12

Yes - 11

Yes – 12

Yes - 11

Package 1 is a range of non-charging measures only, within a non-charging Clean Air Zone. However, it does
include proposed restrictions on highly polluting vehicles entering some areas of the city.
Packages 2 – 5 all include some form of charging Clean Air Zone that will charge drivers of higher-emission
vehicles entering the zone or driving within it. Each package also includes some non-charging measures.
No decisions have been made now, but we must make a decision on the preferred package by December 2018
and submit it to the Government for approval.

Page 106

CLEANER AIR FOR BRISTOL
The Clean Air Zone Classes explained
The figure below shows what types of vehicles would be affected by a Class A, B, C or D Clean Air Zone. The
Council does not set the criteria. This is a national standard set by the Government, based on scientific evidence
and published in its Clean Air Zone Framework.
Class A and B options have been discounted since our analysis demonstrates that they would not achieve
compliance by 2021.

What are the proposed areas of the CAZ?
At this time, we are considering two sizes of Clean Air Zones for Bristol – small or medium (see indicative
boundaries below). The initial assessment work we have done suggests that, with the addition of non-charging
measures, each of these charging zones could achieve compliance in 2021.

The Small Zone covers the city centre, within
the Inner Ring Road
The Medium Zone covers the Bristol Air Quality
Management Area
We did consider a large zone, covering the whole of
Bristol, in our long list of measures. It was rejected as
it could not be delivered in time to meet the 2021
deadline.
The boundary of each zone is not yet fixed and may
change throughout the assessment, taking account
of detailed modelling results and engagement
feedback.

A small zone would have the least impact on residents and the economy, when compared with a medium or large
zone. However, a medium zone will improve air quality over a bigger area than a small zone, bringing public
health benefits to a greater number of people.

Page 107

CLEANER AIR FOR BRISTOL
What exemptions will apply?
In line with the Government’s CAZ framework, the following vehicles are exempt from charges:• Euro 4+ petrol vehicles (from approximately 2006 registration plate)
• Euro 6 diesel vehicles (from approximately 2015 registration plate)
• Fully electric and hydrogen fuel cell vehicles
• Vehicles within the disabled passenger vehicle tax class
Please note these registration plate dates are given as a guide only. Cut-off dates are based on the date the
vehicle model was registered, rather than the specific individual vehicle registration date.
What is a Euro Standard?
European ‘Euro’ emission standards aim to reduce levels of harmful exhaust emissions, by defining acceptable
exhaust emission limits which become more stringent over time. Euro standards were first introduced in 1992
with Euro 1, when catalytic converters became compulsory on new cars. Euro 6 is the most recent standard.

The Non-Charging measures
As well as the charging element, each package will include non-charging measures to encourage greener types of
transport and reduce the number of higher-emission vehicles. These measures will be assessed in more detail
and discussed as part of the engagement process, before a final decision is made. Proposed non-charging
measures depend on whether the option involves a Class D, Class C or non-charging CAZ.
For Options 3 and 5, which both involve a Class D charging CAZ, the non-charging measures are:
 Adapting Council and privately-owned waste vehicles to meet improved emission standards
 New and / or improved cycle paths to encourage more active travel
 Anti-idling zones for buses in the city centre
 Grants for taxi, private hire and LGV drivers to upgrade and / or retrofit their vehicles
 Traffic management measures to relocate queues on Newfoundland Way southbound to M32 north of
Junction 2
 Expansion of Car Club to areas of the City with high levels of ‘uncompliant’ vehicles
 Optimisation of traffic signal timings across the city
 Introduction of further Bus Priority Schemes
 Introduction of subsidised (e.g. free) bus travel for certain demographic or income groups
 Targeted traffic management measures on Rupert Street and Bedminster Down Road
 Real time traffic management across the city
Options 2 and 4, which both involve a Class C charging CAZ, include all the non-charging measures above, but also
1 additional measure:
 Variable parking tariffs in the Council owned car parks to discourage polluting vehicles and / or incentivise
take up of electric vehicles
Option 1, which does not include a charging CAZ, includes all the non-charging measures of Options 2 and 4, but
also 4 other measures:
 Increased Euro Standard requirements for taxis and private hire vehicles in licensing agreements
 Enforcement of mandatory compliance for buses, taxis and private hire vehicles to access bus lanes
and/or franchise routes
 Restrictions on goods vehicles movements in certain parts of the city during peak hours
 Prohibition of diesel cars from polluted parts of the city

Page 108

CLEANER AIR FOR BRISTOL
The Project Timeline
March 2018

Strategic Outline Case approved by Council Cabinet, with five package options to be taken
forward for detailed assessment
Gathering data on emissions and other technical data
Creating a short list of the best packages

2018

Ongoing engagement and consultation
Fully assess the shortlist and chose a preferred package of measures
Working up the design of the preferred package of measures

Late 2018

Present detailed assessment, a preferred package and Outline Business Case

Early 2019

Present detailed design of preferred package and Final Business Case

This would allow us to have a CAZ in place and operational in 2020/21, so that the required improvements in air
quality can be achieved in 2021, at the latest.
The Government’s Role
The Government has provided certain Councils, including Bristol, with funding to assess a range of possible
solutions and more funding is available to introduce appropriate measures to improve air quality. This means the
cost of this project will not be borne by local taxpayers.
The Government has set out a clear framework that we must work to. Our assessments, reports and decisions
need to comply with the guidance issued by the Government’s Joint Air Quality Unit (JAQU).
What are we doing next?
We are assessing the feasibility of each package in more detail. This includes ongoing public engagement;
identifying possible exemptions, the level of charges and hours of operation; and analysing the economic, social,
health, transport, commercial and financial impacts of each option. We are required to reach a decision on our
preferred package by December 2018 at the latest.
Public Engagement
We want to seek a balance with a preferred package that delivers a lot of benefits to people but with limited
impact on residents and the economy. The package must deliver air quality improvements as quickly as possible
and by 2021 at the latest, to meet Government requirements.
The Council is committed to engaging with and getting the opinions of the public, stakeholders and key partners
during the project. This will be on a variety of issues, such as possible exemptions to a Clean Air Zone, and details
of the non-charging measures. We are planning regular drop-in sessions, workshops, information surgeries and
other events throughout the year as part of our continued engagement programme. We will also hold a formal
consultation later in the year, seeking the public’s view on our Outline Business Case.

Want more information?






Go to www.cleanairforbristol.org
Attend our drop-in sessions and workshops
Follow us on Twitter & Facebook
Keep up-to-date with our regular newsletter
Email your comments to air.quality@bristol.gov.uk

Page 109

Improving air quality in Bristol

June 2018 Update 1

Introduction
Clean air is essential for health and helps to make Bristol a pleasant place to live and work
in. However, we have a number of locations within the city where Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)
levels are exceeding legal limits set by the UK Government and the European Union. In
Bristol, the main cause of NO2 air pollution is from motor vehicles, mainly diesel engines.
We have been monitoring pollution levels since 1994 and putting in place a range of
measures to try and improve air quality. In 2001, we created an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) covering the city centre and some of the main roads coming into it. Since
then, the AQMA has informed and influenced both our planning and transport strategies.

Cleaner Air for Bristol 2021
As air pollution continues to exceed European and World Health Organisation limits, more
needs to be done – and quickly. In 2017, the Government instructed a number of Local
Authorities, including Bristol, to reduce levels of NO2. Government funds and technical
expertise are now available to help us consider and implement further measures to
improve air quality.
To comply with the Government instruction, we need to identify a preferred package of
measures by December 2018 that will reduce levels of NO2 at certain locations in the city
to within acceptable limits. A “package of measures” refers to groups of options that help
reduce NO2 emissions from vehicles and encourage the public to use less polluting modes
of transport. To satisfy legal requirements and the Government’s National Air Quality Plan,
we must meet legal limits “in the shortest possible time” and by 2021 at the latest.
As we carry out the technical work, we want to get regular feedback from stakeholders
and residents, so please join the conversation and have your say. You can find out more
overleaf and online.

Get involved





Go to www.cleanairforbristol.org
Attend our drop-in sessions and workshops
Follow us on Twitter & Facebook
Keep up-to-date with our regular newsletter
 Email your comments to air.quality@bristol.gov.uk

Page 110

Is Air Quality important?
Yes, it is. Poor air quality is the largest environmental risk to public health in the UK. Investing in
cleaner air and doing even more to tackle air pollution are priorities for the UK government. Air
pollution has negative impacts on the health of people in Bristol, especially vulnerable members of
the population. Evidence suggests that it can cause permanent lung damage in babies and young
children and exacerbates lung and heart disease in older people. It can also make it harder for
those with respiratory conditions, such as asthma, to breathe. Air quality is often worse in less
affluent areas of towns and cities, making it both a health and equalities problem.

What is causing air pollution in Bristol?
The main source of air pollution in Bristol is from motor vehicles, with high levels of NO2 caused by
exhaust emissions. There tend to be localised areas of poor air quality, where lots of vehicles are
moving slowly in built-up areas.
Air quality monitoring in Bristol is comprehensive and has been carried out since 1994. Our
monitoring network is focused on NO2, and is a combination of automatic monitoring stations and
passive diffusion tubes throughout the city. The monitoring sites show that NO2 pollution levels
often exceed target levels (currently 40 μg/m3) at some roads within Bristol, with Rupert Street
having levels higher than 90 μg/m3 in 2015 for example.
Another source of air pollution is particulate matter (PM), but PM levels at our monitoring sites
have been below EU and UK limits for several years. You can read our latest air quality annual
status report and get local air quality data at our 5 fixed monitoring sites by going to
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/pests-pollution-noise-food/air-quality.
Data suggests NO2 levels from vehicles in Bristol are being caused by:

0% 4%

Petrol Cars (%)
Diesel Cars (%)

23%

Petrol LGVs (%)
40%

2%

Diesel LGVs (%)
Rigid HGVs (%)

8%

Artic HGVs (%)
Bus / Coaches (%)

22%
0%

Other (%)

Diesel vehicles cause 95% of NO2 emissions in Bristol!

What have Bristol City Council already done to improve things?
We have been working to try and reduce vehicle emissions, mainly by encouraging more
sustainable modes of transport, such as cycling, walking or public transport. Examples of projects
that collectively will have a positive impact on air quality in the city are:
 MetroBus
 MetroWest
 New and improved cycle and walking infrastructure
 Reducing pollution from old buses
 Modernising council fleet vehicles
 More electric pool cars for council staff to use

Page 111

Although these investments have made a difference, NO2 levels remain above legal limits across
the city. For this reason, we now need to go further and introduce more measures that will help
bring NO2 levels to below the legal limits.

What is the Government doing?
The Government is concerned about NO2 pollution and, in 2017, published the National Air Quality
Plan, which highlights the impact of NO2 on health. Within this Plan, 28 Local Authorities have
been identified as requiring help to tackle pollution hotspots by 2021 – Bristol City Council is one
of them. This means we are legally required to reduce levels of NO2 recorded at Newfoundland
Way, which is a site included in the national monitoring network, “in the shortest possible time”.
But we also want to reduce exceedances at local hotspots throughout Bristol, so are producing a
Clean Air Plan that looks to address both problems.
The Government has set out a framework we have to work within. However, we now have access
to Government funds (a total of £255m nationally) to further investigate and implement measures
that will quickly reduce air pollution below EU and UK limits. We can use these funds to improve
air quality throughout the city.
Our proposals will only be approved and funding given, if:
 they reduce NO2 levels in the shortest possible time;
 impacts on health, affected residents and businesses have been considered; and
 they show good value for money.

What do we have to do?
Before the end of 2018, we must identify a preferred option and submit a proposal to the
Government for reducing NO2 levels in Bristol by 2021 or earlier.
We are now at a stage where 5 packages of measures have been shortlisted for further
assessment. These 5 options have been approved by BCC Cabinet as part of our Strategic Outline
Case published in March 2018, which you can read online.
To get to this stage, we have:
 used air quality monitoring data, the Bristol AQAP work and other sources of information,
to produce a long list of ideas to reduce air pollution;
 assessed the long list of ideas against various factors, the most important of which is
achieving compliance with legal limits of air pollution in the shortest time possible, as well
as including social and economic impacts;
 shortlisted 5 options of what we think might be the best packages of measures, 4 of which
involve a charging Clean Air Zone (and a combination of non-charging measures) and 1
option of just non-charging measures.
We have a lot of work left to do until a preferred package of measures is proposed, including:
 engaging with stakeholders and the public to get their views on the five options;
 undertake a detailed technical assessment of the options;
 selecting a preferred package of measures;
 prepare an Outline Business Case (OBC) for the preferred package of measures;
 consult on the preferred package of measures and the OBC;
 prepare a detailed design of the preferred package of measures, with a Full Business Case
(FBC); and
 submit the final package and FBC for Government approval.

Page 112

We will focus on measures that reduce levels of vehicle NO2 emissions and that encourage people
to switch to more sustainable modes of transport. We need to consider the impacts of the
measures on the city and its people, and we want to engage widely with residents and
stakeholders during this process to better understand these impacts.

How will this work be paid for?
All of the work needed to be done to meet the air quality instruction will be paid for by the
Government. This means the Council will not have to find funds from its budget. We will get
funding to produce our preferred package of measures and, if that is approved, we get additional
funds to implement our plans.

Public involvement
December 2018 is not far away and we have a lot of work to do. Air pollution affects us all, so we
want a wide discussion and for stakeholders and residents to ask questions and give their views.
To gather these views, we are holding a range of events such as drop-in sessions, workshops,
briefings and meetings to get feedback from our stakeholders and residents. You can find out
details of our events on our website, through this newsletter, by signing up to our emails, or by
following us on social media.

Key Project Dates
March 2018

Strategic Outline Case (SOC) approved by Council Cabinet, with five
package options to be taken forward for detailed assessment

Late 2018 / Early 2019

Present detailed assessment, a preferred package and Outline
Business Case

Early 2019

Present detailed design of preferred package and Final Business Case

If you have any queries, please contact air.quality@bristol.gov.uk

Page 113

FAL

CO

WESTBURY ON TRYM

He

ND

AL

nle
a

E

ze
L

AD

RO

COOMBE
DINGLE

ake

The Council is developing a plan
to reduce air pollution in Bristol.
This will include a Clean Air Zone:
62

A38

A41

CA N F O R D L A N E

16

ROA

D

A4

ON

2

S

LOCKLEAZE

m

v er T r y

AY
N W

Ri

A
YLV

FILT

EASTFIELD

DIN

GLE ROAD

M

M

32

O
OT

RW

AY

HORFIELD

SEA MILLS
HENLEAZE

ROA

D

e
From

STOKE BISHOP

Glou
c
e
s
t
er R

W
White
Tree
r
Rou
R
ou
und-a--bout
ut
Round-a-bout

Ashley
Down

oad

WESTBU

PORTW

AY

BISHOPSTON

STAPLETON

M32

WESTBURY

GLO

UC

ROAD

EST

ER

m

Riv

er T
ry

A4081

River

F

D
RY ROA

Redland

SNEYD PARK

Junction 2

2

3
A4

EASTVILLE
HP

S

RO

AD

A3

8

FIS

D
ON

AY

AC

KB

O

Y

R

CHE

A4

ON
W

NE

32
A4

AD

RO
FO

UN

D

TO

US

LE

RC

AP

CI

ST

D

ST

H

LIN

UT

L

SO

UD
CE

P

R

R
ER

MAR

KET

EE
STR

T

ST

S

B4051

WAY

A4044
TEMP LE

A38

St Philip’s
Marsh

FF H IL
L

REDCLI

A370

PD

B
Bedminster
ster
Bridge
Bri
Bridge
ge

ROA
YO RK

E

D

E

AD
ROF
Footbri
Footbrid
bridge
dge
dg
ge
Footbridge

A3

70

Foo
otbridge
Footbridge

ER

SOUTHVILLE

NC

70

on
Av
er
Riv

ET

BE

A4

RE
ST
EA

ST

Tot
Tott
tterdown
tt
d
down
Totterdown
Bri
ridge
dge
Bridge
OA
W E LL S R

BOWER ASHTON

NU

E

D

A

DA

L

VE

Ashton Gate
RO

O
LAG

MA

Y

PA

BROOMHILL
RK

RO

AD

TH

RO

AD

AD
ENE R O

A4

ST

RO

RE

ET

LLS

ST

AD

RO
AD

W

A4

WE

KE

AS

S
AS

STO

NG

P

BY

ARNO'S VALE

TER

LO

N
TO

70

ND

WIN

A3

Totterdown

SA

BA

SHE

Bedminster

0

7
A3

7

A4

WINDMILL
HILL

AD

AD

BY

A3

BATH ROAD

AD

University of
o The
eW
West
st o
of E
England
land
and
nd
o Art,
Artt, Media
di & Design)
Design
ign)
(Faculty of

RO

AVON
MEADS

ST

M E R CHA N

TS R
OAD

9

NPower
Pri
Road
dss
Private
Roads

0

R O AD

RE
C LA

S

32

T ION

IP

A4

NAG

G

A4

Footbridge

ONA

IL

AY

A3

D

PH

EW

E

AD

COR

RO A

ST

US

C O M M E RC I A L

ROAD

ST. ANNES

CA

PL

Bath
Bridg
B
Br
Brid
Bri
idge
Bridge

CU

Riivver M B E R L A N D
Avon

CLIFT HOUSE ROAD

M

RO

A36

0

Fo
ootbridge
e
Footbridge

r

D
A N D RO A

n Road
o
i
t
a
n
o
r
o
C

E R
OA D

32

Har
bou

TE

TH

CLA

A4

Amphitheatre
Amphithea
heatre

AY
R E DCLIFFE W

Bathurst
athu
ur t
Bas n
Basin

Footbridge
bridge
ridge

D

Prince
P
rince
e
Street
Bridge

BA

Y
NEL WA

OA
C U MBERLAND R

CUMBERL

AY

Flo
atin
g

Re
Redcliff
ffe
Redcliffe
Bridg
dge
dg
Bridge

TEMPLE
QUAY

E

Spike Island
Caravan
Carava
n
Park
Par
ark
rk

TEMPLE
CIRCUS

Cross
H b urr
Harbour
FFerry
Fe
erry

Footbridge

Underf
derf
derfall
Underfall
Yard

BRU

ASHTON COURT
ESTATE

Pe
P
ero’ss
Pero’s
Bridg
Bridge
ge

Baltic
Balti
Ba
alticc
a
Wharf
Wha
Whar
h rf
Marina
arina

Br n
Bru
nel LLo
ock
ck

Av
von
Avon
Bri
B
idge
e
Bridge

Footbridge
ge
e

A4

Ga
G
ate
Gate

Temple
Meads

AT

Police Horse & D
og
o
Dog
Training Cent
tre
e
Centre

Cumb
erlan
Basin
n d

EW

Plimso l
Plimsoll
Bridge
ridge
e

E LL

Barton Hill
G
Gate

US

HOTW

D
ROA

Riv
ver A vo
n

CA

6

A4

D

Re
Refu
efuse Transfer
Trans
Refuse
ta
ati
Station

PS

AD
46

AD

n
ROA

0

TTemple
Templ
ple
lle
Bridg
ge
Bridge
B4

RO

Avo

LL

A420

ILI

LL
TWE

E

A3

BRISLINGTON

02
RO

AD

9
O

L

SC

RS

WA

OK

E

R

BRIST

AD

Y

B ED

IE

ST

M

I

T
NS

ER

DO

W

N

R

D
OA

B ED M IN

Clean Air Zone - Small
Clean Air Zone - Medium

HI
L

C

L
AL

IN

GT

ON

W

174

AY

RI

DG

WA

A37

RO

A4

ROAD

TER

Allotments

WELLS

AD

A38

KNOWLE

A37

ASHTON
VALE

OAD
S TE R R

Key

OL

A4

LL

TER

HO

L

CO

WIN

O

A3029

B

© Bristol City Council BD10808

HARTC L I F F E W A Y

8
3
A

CA

A4174

R

HA

HEADLEY PARK

AD

AT

E

HIGHRIDGE

RT

CL

IF

FE

W

INN'S
COURT

ID

GW

A4

BR

ENTERPRISE
EN
TRADE
CENTRE
RE

HE

NG

RO

VE

17

RP

Bristol Imperial
Sports Centre

74

4

Y
WA

17

4

TO

A4

A
NB

4

AY

IMPERIAL
IA PARK

G

AD
WELLS RO

AY
KW

RO

OC

N
HE

STOCKWOOD
HENGROVE
LEISURE
PARK

VE

NT

W

17

DG

W

AT

ER

RO

AD

HENGROVE

RI

A4

O

CAT
CA
TER
CATER
BUS NESS
BUSINESS
ES
SS
PARK

B

H R
OAD

AY

AN

Woodspring
Golf and Country
Club
ub

BAT

174

A37
AI

A4

RO

A4

RT

BEDMINSTER
DOWN

R

A41

GT

Y

ROAD

ER

AD

I

AT

FILWOOD PARK

8

D
OA

RO

BR

W
DG

AIRPOR T

D
ROA

L

LIN

ON

WA

WELLS

A3

AD

PH

S

WE

RO

M HILL

HO

20

St Philip
lip
Bridge
e

LL

H OT

r
Rive

RO W N H A

Br
rist
istol
ist
Bristol
Br
ri
ridge
Bridge

HILL

RO

ST

Centre

E
JACOBS W

69

A4

ET

THE DINGS
Castle
Bridge

REN CE

L

2
A4
E
TR

69

A3

LAW

RD

A

IL

MB

WE

OLD
W

CE

RH

RO

RO

REN

ME

OL

RK

CLA

D

420

20

HO

PA

T

CHU

ROA
RCH

H R OAD

A4

SC

PLA

A420

IN

A3

EY

D

A4320

AD

EL

R

Lawr ce Hill
H
Hil
illl
Lawrence
nd a-bo t
Round-a-bout

DM

RO

FO

E
AT

ST

EE

AW

G
DS

LA

UP

B OND S T RE

PE

R

ET

MA
H

ROA
S HILL

SUM

CHURC

RO
IG

CLOUD

BOND STREET

Y

LE

RK

TS

Redfield

N

W
NE

N
LA

AD

E

BE

BO

STAP

LET
AY
W

D
AN
DL
UN

KES C
ROFT A38

STO

H S
T
OR O U G H S T R E E
T
LB

M

AR

N O RT

DE
NA
ME
PRO

AB

320

AD

43
Y A

EN

WA

M

ON

O

SPEEDWELL

ST

TH E

St Pauls

EA

T

PR

WHITEHALL

FO

A4

17

6

RO

D

R
eservoir
Reservoir

WH I T E L A D I E S R O A
D

CLIFTON
DOWN

Sch

E

R

DS

32

AD

ROA

Cotham

N

Clifton
H

I

ON

A4

D
OA

EASTON

32

HAM

A4

T

W

P
SH

O

RW

MONTPELIER

A38

LTEN

AY

d

PORTW
IF

DO

M

TO

ST. WERBURGHS

oa
8
01 s R
A4 adie
l
ite

A4
CL

ON

32

F

LG

AD

M

Wh

P

BE

RO

LL

UP

ER

E
AV

HI

THE
DOWNS

A

Y

AD

BL

RO

RTW

G L O U C E STE R

PO

BISHOPSWORTH
HAWKFIELD
BUSINESS
PARK

PARK VIEW
CAMPUS

A Clean Air Zone could mean
charging certain polluting vehicles
to enter central areas of the city.
Find out more:
www.cleanairforbristol.org
#CleanAirForBristol
@BCC_Clean_Air
Page 114

A4

31

We all want clean air
and a healthy city.
Find out what we’re doing
to reduce air pollution in Bristol.
Join the conversation
www.bristol.gov.uk/airquality
#CleanAirForBristol
@BCC_Clean_Air

Page 115

We all want clean air
and a healthy city.
Find out what we’re doing
to reduce air pollution in Bristol.
Join the conversation
www.bristol.gov.uk/airquality
#CleanAirForBristol
@BCC_Clean_Air

Page 116

We all want clean air
and a healthy city.
Find out what we’re doing
to reduce air pollution in Bristol.
Join the conversation
www.bristol.gov.uk/airquality
#CleanAirForBristol
@BCC_Clean_Air

Page 117

BD10808 - Air Quality Flyer_June18_PRINT.2pdf.pdf

1

18/06/2018

14:53

We all want clean air
and a healthy city.
C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Find out what we’re doing to reduce air
pollution in Bristol.
Join the conversation
www.cleanairforbristol.org
#CleanAirForBristol
@BCC_Clean_Air

Page 118

BD10808 - Air Quality Flyer_June18_PRINT.2pdf.pdf

2

18/06/2018

14:53

Bristol’s Clean Air Plan:
• Air pollution has serious health effects on Bristol residents. It
can cause long-term lung damage in babies and children
and contribute to heart and lung disease in older people. It
contributes to 300 deaths per year. This pollution is mostly
NO2 and Particulate Matter (PM)
• NO2 comes mostly from road traffic, and in particular diesel
cars, vans, lorries and buses
• Bristol City Council is developing a Clean Air Plan to reduce
air pollution to within legal limits and there is a legal
imperative to do this “in the shortest possible time”
C

M

Y

CM

MY

• A range of options are being explored, including charging
some vehicles to drive in the city centre. Vehicles which are
cleaner and meet certain standards would not need to pay a
charge

CY

CMY

K

• In addition to charging the most polluting vehicles, we will
be doing a range of things to make it easier for people to
travel around Bristol without using a car
• Final decisions on the proposals for Bristol’s Clean Air Plan
will be made in early 2019. It is expected that the new
measures will be brought into place during 2020

To find out how you can get involved,
when and where meetings and events are
or if you just want more information, visit
www.cleanairforbristol.org
BD10808 Designed and printed on sustainably sourced material by Bristol Design, Bristol City Council

Page 119

